
 

 

 

CABINET 
 
MONDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2022 
 
2.00 PM 
 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, FENLAND HALL, 
COUNTY ROAD, MARCH 

Committee Officer: Linda Albon  
Tel: 01354 622229 

e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 
 
Whilst this meeting will be held in public, we encourage members of the public to view the 
meeting via our YouTube channel:  https://youtu.be/jUAVCught5Y 
 

1   To receive apologies for absence  
 

2   Previous Minutes (Pages 3 - 10) 
 
To confirm and sign the public minutes of 5 September 2022. 
 

3   To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by 
virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified  
 

4   To receive members' declaration of any interests under the Local Code of Conduct or 
any interest under the Code of Conduct on Planning Matters in respect of any item to 
be discussed at the meeting  
 

5   Fenland Walking, Cycling & Mobility Aid Strategy (Pages 11 - 86) 
 
To note the progress relating to the approved schemes and projects and to review 
the Improvement Strategy, with a view to its adoption as Version 2.  
 

6   Bidding for External Funding & Project Management (Pages 87 - 94) 
 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/jUAVCught5Y


To update Cabinet on the revised processes to successfully bid for and manage 
future and existing projects. 
 

7   11-12 and 24 High Street, Wisbech (verbal updates)  
 

8   Constitutional Amendments (Pages 95 - 98) 
 
To seek Cabinet’s agreement to a proposed amendment to the Standing Orders for 
recommendation to Full Council for approval. 
 

9   Draft 6 Month Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 99 - 100) 
 
For information purposes. 
 

10   Items which the Chairman has under item 3 deemed urgent  
 

CONFIDENTIAL - ITEMS COMPRISING EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
To exclude the public (including the press) from a meeting of a committee it is necessary for 
the following proposition to be moved and adopted: "that the public be excluded from the 
meeting for Items which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) as indicated." 
 

11   Previous Minutes (confidential) (Pages 101 - 104) 
 
To confirm and sign the confidential minutes of the meeting held 5 September 2022. 
 

Friday, 23 September 2022 
 
Members:  Councillor C Boden (Chairman), Councillor Mrs J French (Vice-Chairman), Councillor I Benney, 

Councillor S Clark, Councillor S Count, Councillor Miss S Hoy, Councillor Mrs D Laws, 
Councillor P Murphy, Councillor C Seaton and Councillor S Tierney 



 
 

CABINET 
 

 
MONDAY, 5 SEPTEMBER 2022 - 12.00 PM 

 
PRESENT: Councillor C Boden (Chairman), Councillor I Benney, Councillor S Clark, Councillor 
Mrs J French (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Miss S Hoy, Councillor P Murphy, Councillor C Seaton 
and Councillor S Tierney. 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillor S Count and Councillor Mrs D Laws. 
 
CAB18/22 PREVIOUS MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2022 were confirmed and signed as an accurate 
record. 
 
CAB19/22 PURCHASE OF AIR QUALITY MONITORING EQUIPMENT 

 
Councillor Boden presented the purchase of Air Quality Monitoring equipment report. 
 
Councillor Boden reminded members that a motion was brought forward at Full Council to prioritise 
the purchasing of air quality monitoring equipment in Whittlesey and also to seek to publicise the 
record of what is being monitored. He stated that the reason behind this is that there has been a 
very considerable amount of disquiet in Whittlesey at the amount of what is believed to be 
industrial pollution which has been experienced increasingly over the last few months and it is vital 
that there is public reassurance that there is no danger to health and that it is identified where 
these sources of pollution are coming from so action can be taken. 
 
Councillor Boden advised that the pollution being referred to is dust, odour, particulates and noise, 
so it is quite a wide range of areas being covered. He stated that two options have been given in 
the thorough report to members about the running costs of a reference monitoring station or of an 
air quality sensor and in both cases they capture data for nitrogen dioxide and particulates of 10 
and 3.5 micrometres. 
 
Councillor Boden suggested that Option B be taken, which is the air quality sensor which would be 
within existing budgets but that an SO2 sensor also be asked for so that sulphur dioxide can be 
measured at the same time and additionally he will be requesting, in accordance with Paragraph 
2B of the resolution at Full Council, that further consideration be given by officers to how the 
Council will publicly report both its monitoring readings and any monitoring readings that the 
Council is able to obtain from third-party monitors. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows: 

• Councillor Mrs French recognises the problem that exists in Whittlesey but assumes that the 
equipment will be moved around the rest of the District? She made the point that due to the 
amount of building that is taking place she is receiving lots of complaints about dust, smells 
and noises, especially on larger building sites and she thinks the problem will get worse so 
this equipment is essential. Councillor Boden responded that there is some flexibility with 
this, especially when going with the cheaper option it is quite possible that more sensors 
can be purchased as and when necessary and the report does say that there may well be 
statutory obligations upon the Council at some stage in the very near future for additional 
monitoring. He stated that industrial pollution is quite different in terms of its nature from the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



dust, especially to the dust that occurs during building. 
• Councillor Tierney stated that historically Fenland has very good air quality, which is 

something that the area can be proud of, but information is needed to show if this is 
changing and in some areas residents are concerned and they could be correct. He stated 
that he is supportive of the sensors and feels it is good the Council is investing in being able 
to check the whole of Fenland going forward. Councillor Boden stated that it is also 
important that the Council does not hide anything and is as public and as open as it can be 
with the data obtained as there is a duty to reassure the public that everything is being 
undertaken and they can see for themselves what the measurements are which are taken, 
not just in Whittlesey but across Fenland, with openness being increasingly important as 
more sensors are purchased and more information and data is obtained. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Boden, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and AGREED to: 

• approve the purchase of one monitoring sensor unit, to include a SO2 sensor, with 
associated support services to enable the publication of real-time data with the costs 
being funded from within existing budgets; 

• approve that the first location of this monitoring equipment being Whittlesey; and 
• officers to give consideration as to the publication of the results of the monitoring 

undertaken by them and third-party monitoring and to report back to Cabinet on the 
options available. 

 
CAB20/22 DIESEL FUEL SUPPLY VIA ESPO CONTRACT 

 
Councillor Boden presented the report on the proposed renewal of a contract to purchase diesel 
fuel supply via ESPO. 
 
Councillor Boden stated that due to the size of this contract it is necessary for this report to come 
before Cabinet and as is explained the Council currently purchases its fuel in bulk through a 
national framework, the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) and it is time for the 
Council to reconsider how it purchases its fuel in future. He stated that there has not been any 
difficulty with ESPO in the past, which seems to have given good value for money and there is no 
reason why it should not give good value for money in the future.   
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows: 

• Councillor Murphy stated that diesel has been reduced by the introduction of electric bin lifts 
and more efficient vehicles and despite averaging another 400-500 properties a year to 
collect from which equates to a lot of mileage, diesel is still being reduced. He expressed his 
support for the recommendations within the report. 

• Councillor Boden stated that one of the first actions that he took when he became Leader of 
the Council was to ask for detailed operational reports on a vehicle by vehicle and day by 
day basis of the Council’s refuse collection vehicles in the expectation that he would be able 
to make some significant suggestions about how things could be improved and after going 
through an analysis of the data he realised that things had been optimised as far as they 
could, with officers and Councillor Murphy doing an excellent job ensuring the Council is 
getting the best value for money that it possibly could. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Boden, seconded by Councillor Murphy and AGREED to: 

• delegate authority for the Director(s) with responsibility for Environmental Services 
and the Port to procure diesel fuel through an ESPO tendered framework with 
immediate effect to ensure continuity of supply for these key services; 

• set a contract term for this provision of 2 years, plus the option of 2 years extension; 
and 

• delegate power for the Director(s) with responsibility for Environmental Services and 
the Port in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder(s) to extend this contract to 
its full term of 4 years where it continues to deliver best value. 

Page 4



 
CAB21/22 PROPOSED ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION - MUD WALLS WHITTLESEY 

 
In the absence of the Portfolio Holder, Councillor Boden presented the report to confirm the Article 
4 Direction to remove permitted development rights for the removal and alteration of the mud walls 
in Whittlesey for consultation purposes. He stated that planning permission would be required if 
works to demolish any of the walls in part or entirety were proposed, which removes the risk of the 
loss of mud walls which are a significant and unique architectural and historic feature in Whittlesey. 
 
Councillor Boden stated that if approval is given by Cabinet there will be a consultation, which will 
include a press notice, notification to the Town Council and the wall owners, with the results of the 
consultation being brought back to Cabinet with the report recommending whether or not the 
Article 4 Direction should be confirmed. He stated that the Article 4 Direction would not be effective 
until after the consultation and then only when the Direction is subsequently confirmed by Cabinet. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Boden, seconded by Councillor Clark and AGREED that the Article 
4 Direction be approved for public consultation. 
 
CAB22/22 CONFIRMATION OF ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION - LAND TO THE REAR OF B1098 

 
In the absence of the Portfolio Holder, Councillor Boden presented the report to confirm the Article 
4 Direction to remove permitted development rights for means of enclosure, formation of accesses, 
temporary uses and caravans, formation of tracks on land located in the open countryside to the 
rear of established and unrelated residential properties on the B1098, Horseway, Chatteris. 
 
Councillor Boden reminded members that early in the year Cabinet approved an immediate Article 
4 Direction on this land as it was considered necessary as the land had been divided up into over 
100 plots and works that could be undertaken without planning permission under permitted 
development rights would potentially be damaging to the appearance of the countryside. He stated 
that the Direction was published for consultation purposes and the results of the consultation have 
been presented to members in the report and having reviewed the responses it is considered that 
the need for the Direction remains and no points raised during the consultation outweigh the 
benefits of the Direction and no matters have been brought forward that make it necessary to 
revise the Direction. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows: 

• Councillor Mrs French asked what is going to happen to the structures that are already on 
the land? Councillor Boden stated that he does not have the technical knowledge to answer 
this and asked officers to provide a response. Nick Harding stated that at this point in time a 
survey has not been commissioned of the whole site, which will be undertaken if Cabinet 
confirms the Direction today, and this will enable officers to establish a position statement 
as to what development has taken place thus far and the Council will then reach a 
determination over what is authorised and what is not. He stated that the Article 4 Direction 
does not work backwards in time so that anything that was undertaken lawfully can remain 
so the Council would only be interested in any unlawful development and when dealing with 
the unlawful development a decision would be made using the usual methodology to 
establish whether or not there is merit in taking any enforcement action. 

• Councillor Murphy asked how quickly is this going to be undertaken as time is of the 
essence here as more items will be placed on the land? Nick Harding responded that as the 
Council went down the immediate Article 4 Direction route it took effect at the time the 
earlier decision was made by Cabinet. He stated that he is anticipating that the survey work 
should be completed within the next 2 months but that would not affect the position relating 
to any unlawful development that took place prior to the immediate Article 4 Direction 
coming into force. 

 

Page 5



Proposed by Councillor Boden, seconded by Councillor Murphy and AGREED that the 
Article 4 Direction to remove permitted development rights be confirmed. 
 
CAB23/22 11-12 HIGH STREET, WISBECH 

 
Councillor Seaton provided Cabinet with an update regarding on-going work related to 11-12 High 
Street, Wisbech. 
 
Councillor Seaton reminded members that the previous project to develop 11-12 High Street by 
way of a third-party developer did not proceed when construction costs well above the expected 
limit were returned and despite the developer being happy to make an initial loss in excess of £1 
million the increased construction costs pushed this loss up further making the project even less 
viable. He stated that since that time the Council has explored several options with limited 
progress and as is indicated in the report the current situation has three potential options: 

• to build a façade on the front elevation to ensure the High Street is restored to how it ought 
to look 

• discussions are on-going with a third sector organisation to develop the building as per the 
agreed planning application 

• a further third-party builder is assessing the site in terms of viability. 
 
Councillor Seaton stated that he will report back to Cabinet when the three options have 
crystallised, and it is known what is or is not possible and then the Council will know the likelihood 
of the £1million National Lottery Heritage Grant being used to support the construction work at 24 
High Street. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows: 

• Councillor Tierney expressed the view that this site has had a series of bad luck and other 
things have derailed it over the years since discussions began on this building, but he 
stressed the urgency of getting on with whatever plan that the Council is going forward with 
including obtaining the information as things are not getting cheaper, building materials are 
escalating and nationally it is being cited that there are more price rises to come. He is 
aware that Councillor Seaton and officers are working hard on this issue, but the need for 
urgency needs to be borne in mind. Councillor Seaton agreed with Councillor Tierney’s 
comments, it is an urgent matter that needs to be resolved as soon as possible but the 
Council is also in the hands of the proposed developers coming forward with their figures. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Seaton, seconded by Councillor Benney and AGREED that the 
current position in relation to 11-12 High Street, Wisbech be noted. 
 
CAB24/22 24 HIGH STREET, WISBECH 

 
Councillor Seaton provided Cabinet with an update on progress with the 24 High Street, Wisbech 
redevelopment project. 
 
Councillor Seaton reminded members that at the last Cabinet meeting it was recommended to 
Council that the Council enters into a contract with the preferred bidder to develop this site and the 
Council is now in a pre-contract arrangement with the preferred bidder establishing some key facts 
of the work in advance of signing the full build contract and starting on site. He stated that the work 
that is on-going at present will deliver more cost certainty prior to entering into the main contract by 
establishing the contractor’s accurate construction phase plan, an engineering assessment of the 
current steel supports with a view to their current safety and how much movement some will need 
to allow construction and further assessment of any potential highway closures in the High Street, 
with these being limited as much as possible both in terms of the build cost as well as 
inconvenience to the community and adjacent businesses. 
 

Page 6



Councillor Seaton made the point that this work is necessary as part of the project and will not 
delay the start on site date. He suggested that the next update should be when the Council has a 
start date and has signed the main build contract. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows: 

• Councillor Hoy referred to the piece of art that is on the façade, which she feels look quite 
nice, and that it would be a shame for this to be lost, although she does want the new 
building to take place. Councillor Seaton responded that he would speak to officers and see 
what options there are in retaining this piece of artwork. 

• Councillor Tierney endorsed Councillor Hoy’s comments, he stated the artists were excited 
about doing this artwork and pleased to be doing something good in the town and any time 
someone puts time, energy and effort into improving a place the Council should remember 
to thank them and champion them for it, which does not always happen. 

• Councillor Seaton stated that 24 High Street has been a long time in its gestation period and 
the Council needs to press on with it as soon as it can. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Seaton, seconded by Councillor Hoy and AGREED that the current 
position in relation to 24 High Street, Wisbech be noted. 
 
CAB25/22 ASYLUM SEEKER DISPERSAL 

 
Councillor Hoy presented the report on the potential financial and social implications of the 
Government’s Asylum Seeker Dispersal programme as it relates to Fenland. 
 
Councillor Hoy stated that the Council has had notification that it will be expected to house a 
significant number of asylum seekers by December 2023, and this worries her for a number of 
reasons  

• she does not like the way it has been forced upon Fenland, with all councils being made to 
take asylum seekers but it is not right that the Council is not allowed to say no, and she is 
very frustrated when Government force this policy on the Council, particularly when they do 
not understand Fenland’s needs and issues; 

• there is a shortage of housing so where will these asylum seekers be housed and all 
members know of residents in their own areas who are struggling to find housing, both 
social and private; 

• will Serco be buying houses or renting houses per person because if it is individual units it is 
going to be a significant number of houses taken, if it is to create HMOs or hotels that is 
also going to have a knock-on effect for the wider area and not enough work has been 
undertaken by the Government on the implications to local services and housing supply; 

• if an asylum seeker claim fails they are going to be signposted to leave but how can it be 
ensured that they do actually leave, they will be left with no recourse to public funds and 
Government’s answer seems to be you do not have to pay for them so no problem, but 
some of the rough sleepers have no recourse to public funds but that does not solve the 
problem as the Council does not want people living in tents in streets as not only does it 
look unsightly it is not good for people health and how they should be living; and 

• if the Council has to take on so many asylum seekers by next year how do members know it 
will not be the same number or more year after year. It is being reported that 1,000 people 
are coming over the Channel a day how are those numbers going to materialise all over the 
country. 

 
Councillor Hoy expressed the view that it is clear that Government wants to get people out of 
hotels and thinks disbursing them across the country is the way to do this, but this is not dealing 
with the real issue and Government is not getting to grips with immigration. She feels that with this 
issue the Council needs to be strong as if you are a pushover the Government will just push and 
walk all over you, particularly as Fenland has cheap housing.   
 

Page 7



Councillor Hoy stated that West Midlands Council were strong, they all clubbed together taking the 
Government to a judicial review, having previously taken the bulk of asylum seekers, and won, 
which is why the Government has changed its policy now and gone for full dispersal. She suggests 
that a watching brief is kept over this issue as the Council does need to be prepared to be strong if 
necessary in future but for the time being the recommendations set out in the report be followed. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows: 

• Councillor Boden expressed his serious concern over this matter, not just in Fenland but 
nationally, but members do need to consider what the impact will be on Fenland. He stated 
that on a full dispersal scheme, which Government are saying they plan to have eventually, 
so long as you have 1,000 illegal immigrants coming across the Channel on a daily basis 
Fenland will be expected to take two every single day and this is more than just a worrying 
prospect. Councillor Boden stated that the first thing that the Council is demanding the 
Government does is get the border sorted out, take stronger action to deter people, to stop 
people, to return people, to take stronger action than is being undertaken at the moment; 
secondly to process people more quickly and to deport those individuals who have no right 
to be here; and thirdly the Government has to be more discriminating in where these asylum 
seekers will be dispersed to because it will be entirely inappropriate for asylum seekers who 
may not have any English at all and be of the same culture as the indigenous population to 
be “dumped” for example in a village with no bus service and no ability to get to any town 
where there may be services which may be appropriate for them, which is a recipe for 
disaster not just for them but also potentially for the local community. He stated that the 
Council is asking for all these things to be undertaken and for the Member of Parliament 
and for the newly appointed Prime Minister to push this forward, with the impact that this will 
have, not just on the asylum seekers themselves but also on the local communities if there 
becomes a shortage of rented properties as a result of Serco’s actions not just for the 
numbers they are currently talking about, which are confidential, but also for the additional 
50% which it is assumed will take place once the number of illegal asylum seekers reaches 
100,000 according to the Gov.UK website, in Fenland on the private rented sector is going 
to be significant for many individuals and this just does not seem to have been taken into 
account. 

• Councillor Mrs French stated that Councillor Hoy had summed it up well as it will be very 
worrying if Fenland is forced to take asylum seekers as Fenland does already have a 
shortage of housing and whilst she is not against helping people, the District needs to look 
after its own residents first. 

• Councillor Tierney agrees with what Councillor Hoy says and would go further as he is sick 
and tired of the Government making stupid decisions and then passing the problem down 
the line to people who did not make those stupid decisions. He expressed the opinion that 
people say to him all the time why is the country allowing up to 1,000 people a day who we 
do not know anything about and people are frustrated with seeing these asylum seekers put 
up in hotels and lots of money thrown at them when people here are struggling and things 
are getting harder and the harder things get the more angry people are going to get and that 
anger will be directed fairly or unfairly at the newcomers. Councillor Tierney feels it is a 
recipe for unhappiness and difficulties and is a bad policy overall, but as the Government 
are getting focused on about putting asylum seekers in hotels it thinks to solve the problem 
they should be farmed out to all the areas, which he feels is stupid, Fenland is not just short 
of housing but has issues with dentists, doctors, school places and travel and all of these 
things will be compounded every time a bunch of people arrive who the area knows nothing 
about because if they had come through proper channels they would not be asylum 
seekers. He feels that a fair number of asylum seekers are economic migrants who are 
coming to the UK for a better way of life, which he has no problem with, but there is a limit to 
how much help can keep being extended day after day without impacting the country’s own 
people. Councillor Tierney stated that he would like to be much stronger and wished that the 
Council had the financial ability to take the Government to court as it is the wrong policy and 
the Government should be told that Fenland does not want this, not because it does not 

Page 8



want to help people, it is very diverse already, it is about the pace of change and the 
struggles that the people who live in Fenland have right now, who elected members to 
represent them. 

• Councillor Benney raised concern with the effect this will have on the private sector housing 
market, which will drive the cost of housing up for everybody as where there is a shortage 
the prices will go up and that will affect local people, who are already struggling. He referred 
to several families who have approached him lately looking for accommodation, who have 
the funds but just cannot find anywhere and these are local people, who the Council should 
be looking after and this scheme will add further strain to the market. He agreed with the 
comments of other members. 

• Councillor Hoy expressed frustrations with the Government as she feels that some people 
watching the meeting will be thinking that members are being unkind to a group of people, 
but the Government needs to get to grips with people accessing routes that should not be 
allowed to them. 

• Councillor Benney made the point that asylum seekers are travelling across European 
countries and they could claim asylum in these countries and do not have to come to 
England. He feels this is a backdoor way of people coming to this country and the country is 
being taken advantage of. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Hoy, seconded by Councillor Boden and AGREED to: 
• note the contents of the report; 
• request officers to provide instructions as to what preparations need to be made by 

the Council in respect of the Asylum Seeker Dispersal Programme and the 
assessment of the Council’s revenue budget implications of the scheme; and 

• instruct officers, in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder for Housing, to send letters 
to Steve Barclay MP and the new Prime Minister to demand: 

o that Government continues and increases its attempts to identify and reduce 
the number of illegal asylum seekers entering and remaining in the UK 

o that Government significantly improves the asylum processing system so that 
asylum seekers’ applications are processed in a timely manner 

o that measures to remove from the UK those destitute individuals who have no 
recourse to public funds be significantly improved 

o that all additional local authority costs resulting from the Asylum Seeker 
Dispersal Policy should be guaranteed to be reimbursed in full by Government, 
including those costs which are incurred following an asylum seeker’s 
application for asylum being refused. 

 
CAB26/22 DRAFT 6 MONTH CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 
Councillor Boden presented the draft six month Cabinet Forward Plan for information and stated 
that there would be an additional item on the agenda for 3 October 2022 on Project Management. 
 
Councillor Hoy asked if an update on the Asylum Seeker Dispersal Programme should be included 
at a future meeting? Councillor Boden agreed when there is further definite information from Serco 
on what the arrangements will be. 
 
CAB27/22 ACCOMMODATION REVIEW (CONFIDENTIAL) 

 
Councillor Boden presented the report on the accommodation review. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Boden, seconded by Councillor Benney and AGREED the proposed 
recommendations. 
 

Page 9



(Members resolved to exclude the public for this item of business on the grounds that it involved 
the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972) 
 
CAB28/22 POTENTIAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION OPPORTUNITY (CONFIDENTIAL) 

 
Councillor Benney presented the report on a potential property acquisition opportunity. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Boden and AGREED the proposed 
recommendations. 
 
(Members resolved to exclude the public for this item of business on the grounds that it involved 
the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972) 
 
CAB29/22 INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITY (CONFIDENTIAL) 

 
Councillor Benney presented the report on an investment opportunity. 
 
Members made comments, asked questions and received responses. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Boden and AGREED the proposed 
recommendations. 
 
(Members resolved to exclude the public for this item of business on the grounds that it involved 
the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972) 
 
 
 
 
1.05 pm                     Chairman 

Page 10



Agenda Item 
No: 5  

Committee: Cabinet 

Date:  3 October 2022 

Report Title: Fenland Cycling, Walking & Mobility Aid Improvement 
Strategy: Version 2 

 
 
Cover sheet: 
1 Purpose / Summary 
1.1 This report relates to walking, cycling and mobility.  Its purposes are as 

follows 

• To note the progress relating to the approved schemes and the March 
Area Transport Strategy Walking and Cycling projects  

• To note the outcome of the public consultation on version 1 of the strategy 

• To note the action plans of schemes  

• To review the proposed Cycling, Walking & Mobility Aid Improvement 
Strategy following the above and adopt this as Version 2. 

 
 
2 Key Issues 
2.1 On 17th November 2020, a report was presented to FDC Cabinet 

recommending funding the development of a Fenland Cycling, Walking and 
Mobility Strategy incorporating the findings from the March Area Transport 
Study Walking and Cycling Strategy (April 2020). This recommendation was 
approved along with a contribution from the Hereward Community Rail 
Partnership to develop the strategy. 

2.2 Following the completion of desk top surveys, a public consultation was held 
in early 2021.  734 responses were received, and feedback was gathered 
relating to how residents currently travel for short local journeys and their 
views on walking, cycling and mobility aid use in Fenland. Route audit work 
for the market towns was then completed along with draft proposals for 
schemes and initial work on priority projects. 

2.3 Cabinet approved version 1 of the Fenland Walking, Cycling and Mobility Aid 
Strategy at its meeting on 30 September 2021.  The Cabinet approval 
included a public consultation to be held on version 1, followed by a revised 
strategy being submitted back to Cabinet with scheme action plans. Cabinet 
also approved further work on three initial priority schemes and a separate 
package of walking and cycling schemes.  Both sets of schemes were to be 
taken forward for further consideration.  

2.4 A public consultation on version 1 of the Walking, Cycling and Mobility Aid 
Strategy was undertaken in December 2021/January 2022 inviting views and 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



comments regarding the adopted strategy content, action plan and 
recommendations.  A total of 64 complete survey responses were received.  
Based on these responses 89% supported the overall approach to the 
strategy. The remaining responses stated they were not in favour of the 
strategy approach due to the content needing to provide more focus on 
villages, the schemes identified should be bolder and no focus on provision 
for equestrians within this strategy. These matters have been considered and 
taken account of in version 2 of the strategy. Further information as to how the 
comments have been addressed can be found in 2.2.4 – 2.2.10 in main report 
below.  

2.5 Since September 2021 good progress has been made on the initial priority 
schemes and the scheme package in several areas as follows: 

• In December 2021, an application for funding of £7.5Million over 4 years 
was submitted to the CPCA to fully deliver all the projects set out above. 
At the present time we are still awaiting the outcome of this application 

• NCN63 - With assistance from CCC and CPCA £20,000 Capability Fund 
money has been secured towards initial feasibility study work.   

• Chatteris A141 missing footpath linking Doddington Road to A141 
roundabout including footpath widening. This is in the location of the 
Womb Farm development. There have been additional opportunities 
through the planning process for discussion about this additional link.  In 
March 2022, a non- material amendment approval was given to the 
developer by FDC Planning and this now includes the whole route along 
Doddington Road to the A141.   

• For the remaining schemes identified above, discussions have been 
ongoing about the procurement for survey, scoping, and feasibility study 
work.  It has been confirmed that a separate tender exercise will be 
needed. This will be funded through the remaining Walking, Cycling and 
Mobility Aid Strategy funding approved by Cabinet in September 2021.   

• The March Walking and Cycling Schemes are being taken forward 
through the March Area Transport Strategy a CPCA funded project that is 
being delivered by CCC. The strategy was developed in 2020 and 
feasibility study work on the proposed schemes was commissioned in 
2021. This work has recently concluded with costed proposals for 28 
projects totally £582,800.  Papers are due to be discussed to draw down 
this funding at the CPCA Transport and Infrastructure Committee and 
CPCA Board in September 2022. 

2.6 Progress on the Chatteris to Somersham cycle way and footpath along the old 
railway bed is not currently in progress. Ongoing work identified that the 
scheme would require substantial funding for the upgrade. Despite an early 
understanding of support for this scheme, Somersham PC more recently have 
indicated that they do not wish to see the development of this route. 

2.7 This paper now includes version 2 of the Fenland Walking, Cycling and 
Mobility Ait Strategy and proposals for scheme delivery within the coming 
months  

 

Page 12



3 Recommendations 
3.1 To note the progress relating to the approved schemes and the March Area 

Transport Strategy Walking and Cycling projects  
2.2 To note the outcome of the public consultation on version 1 of the strategy 
3.3      To note the action plans of schemes  
3.4 To review the proposed Cycling, Walking & Mobility Aid Improvement Strategy 

following the above and adopt this as Version 2. 
. 
 
Wards Affected All 

Forward Plan 
Reference 

 

Portfolio Holder(s) Cllr Seaton - Portfolio Holder for Social Mobility and 
Heritage 
 

Report Originator(s) Belinda Pedler (Senior Transport Officer) 
Wendy Otter (Transport Development Manager) 

Contact Officer(s) Belinda Pedler (Senior Transport Officer) 
Tel: 07738 260787 
Email: bpedler@fenland.gov.uk 
Wendy Otter (Transport Development Manager) 
Email: wotter@fenland.gov.uk 

Background Papers  
FDC Cabinet meeting 17 November 2020 
Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday, 17th November, 2020, 
4.00 pm - Fenland District Council 
 
 
FDC Cabinet Meeting 30 September 2021 – agenda, 
paper and minutes 
Agenda for Cabinet on Thursday, 30th September, 2021, 
3.00 pm - Fenland District Council 
 
March Area Transport Strategy – Cambridgeshire County 
Council technical papers and reports for this strategy 
including the pedestrian and walking strategy 
March Transport Study - Cambridgeshire County Council 
 
CPCA Transport & Infrastructure Committee 14 
September 2022 – agenda and papers including the 
March Area Transport Study Walking and Cycling 
feasibility study report. 
CMIS > Meetings 
 

Page 13

mailto:bpedler@fenland.gov.uk
mailto:wotter@fenland.gov.uk
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/localgov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=2480&Ver=4
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/localgov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=2480&Ver=4
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/localgov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=2653&Ver=4
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/localgov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=2653&Ver=4
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/march-transport-study
https://cambridgeshirepeterboroughcagov.cmis.uk.com/Meetings/tabid/70/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/397/Meeting/2138/Committee/67/SelectedTab/Documents/Default.aspx


 
Report: 
 
2 BACKGROUND AND INTENDED OUTCOMES 
 
2.3 Introduction  
 
2.1.1 On 17th November 2020, a report was presented to FDC Cabinet 

recommending funding the development of a Fenland Cycling, Walking and 
Mobility Strategy incorporating the findings from the March Area Transport 
Study Walking and Cycling Strategy (April 2020). This recommendation was 
approved along with a contribution from the Hereward Community Rail 
Partnership to develop the strategy. The strategy project was overseen by the 
Transport and Access Group (TAG), with a Sub-Group of TAG members set 
up to review monthly progress. The TAG is made up of stakeholders from 
each Town Council, the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined 
Authority, Cambridgeshire County Council, Sustrans and the Cambridgeshire 
Local Access Forum (LAF). This provided a wide-ranging representation to 
inform the development of the draft strategy. 

2.1.2 A desktop review was undertaken in early 2021 to determine key walking and 
cycling routes in Chatteris, Whittlesey and Wisbech. This was also informed 
by an online public survey carried out through February and March 2021 and 
continuous stakeholder engagement throughout the development of the 
strategy. 

2.1.3 Feedback was gathered through the survey and engagement relating to how 
residents currently travel for short local journeys and their views on walking, 
cycling and mobility aid use in Fenland. The survey was very successful, 
achieving 734 responses from residents, workers, and students in and around 
Fenland. Although most respondents were cyclists the levels of people cycling 
to places of education, health and employment indicated in the survey are 
currently low. Stakeholder engagement also provided valuable insight from a 
range of areas including cycling groups, young people in Wisbech and 
equestrian representatives. 

2.1.4 Core routes for each Fenland Town were mapped and a high-level audit 
carried out on each section. The resulting scheme recommendations from this 
work are set out in the strategy alongside improvement recommendations 
from the LCWIP and TIP. 

2.1.5 Cabinet approved version 1 of the Fenland Walking, Cycling and Mobility Aid 
Strategy at its meeting on 30 September 2021.  The Cabinet approval 
included proposals for a public consultation to be held on version 1 and for 
action plans of schemes to be developed and consulted upon.  Cabinet also 
approved further work on three initial priority schemes and a separate 
package of walking and cycling schemes.  Both sets of schemes were to be 
taken forward for further consideration.  

 

Page 14



2.2 Public Consultation and Walking, Cycling and Mobility Strategy version 2  
2.2.2 Cabinet approved version 1 of the Fenland Walking, Cycling and Mobility Aid 

Strategy at its meeting on 30 September 2021.  The Cabinet approval 
included a public consultation to be held on version 1.  

2.2.3 A public consultation was undertaken in December 2021/January 2022 
inviting views and comments regarding the adopted strategy content, action 
plan and recommendations.  A total of 64 complete survey responses were 
received. The results of this survey and views provided were used to revise 
and update the document, creating Version 2 of the Fenland Cycling, Walking 
and Mobility Improvement Strategy. 

2.2.4 Based on these responses 89% supported the overall approach to the 
strategy. With comments including “This is urgently required”, “I think the 
action plan is very well thought out”, “Some great suggestions to improve 
pedestrian access to schools”.  

2.2.5 There were several responses indicating that the strategy document needed 
to be clearer and not so repetitive.  Officers have now made substantial 
revisions to the document to address these comments.  These revisions are 
aimed at providing clarify on our strategy and its relevant components and are 
not specifically about amends to the content or the approach.   

2.2.6 The remaining responses stated they were not in favour of the strategy 
approach for the following reasons:  

• the content needs to provide more focus on villages,  

• the schemes identified should be bolder and  

• no focus on provision for equestrians within this strategy.  
2.2.7 Based on the above comments, a stronger focus has been given to the 

villages. A key component of the strategy is missing footpaths and links to 
facilitate travel to villages centres and employment/essential services.  An 
additional approach has now been added to complete audit work across all 
the villages from which feasibility and assessment work along with funding 
can be secured.  A contact process is also going to be established to enable 
people to report missing sections of path outside the audit process 

2.2.8 Changes to the strategy document have enabled proposed schemes to be 
more clearly set out. This Strategy aims to develop an integrated network of 
routes for walkers, cyclists and mobility aid users. This is across the towns, in 
the villages and through strategic links between the towns.  This is considered 
an ambitious proposal and when delivered will provide significant 
opportunities to walk and cycle around Fenland that are not possible at the 
present time.  

2.2.9 Horse riding is not considered to be a method of travel to access places of 
education and employment and is therefore not a transport mode this strategy 
is aimed at. Section 1.4 considers different modes of travel; it recognises the 
importance of horse riding to the rural community and recommends such 
provision to be considered where possible 

Page 15



2.2.10 Having completed the public consultation and amended the document to take 
account of the feedback. Cabinet is asked to approve version 2 of the 
strategy.   

 

2.3 Walking and cycling schemes updates and progress 
2.3.2 In September 2021, Cabinet approved three initial priority schemes and a 

separate package of walking and cycling schemes to be taken forward early. 
These schemes had been compared with similar projects already identified in 
the CCC Transport Investment Plan (TIP) and the more recent Local Cycling, 
Walking Investment Plan (LCWIP).  Further details of the specific schemes 
are set out in paragraphs 2.3.4 and 2.3.5 below. A progress update can be 
found in paragraph 2.3.7 below. 

2.3.3 The September 2021 Cabinet report also confirmed that the walking and 
cycling approach for March was being considered separately through work 
already in progress as part of the March Area Transport Strategy (MATS). 
Further details of this work are set out in paragraph 2.3.6 below. Paragraph 
2.3.8 indicates progress to date. 

2.3.4 The three initial priority schemes are focusing on key strategic routes and are 
as follows: 

• NCN63 from Peterborough to Wisbech but with an initial focus on the 
section from Peterborough to Whittlesey (the Green Wheel).  This relates 
to CCC TIP scheme 422 

• Development of a detailed scheme for an off carriageway cycling and 
walking route on the A141 from Peas Hill roundabout to Mill Hill 
roundabout. The initial focus being around Chatteris and the A141. This 
relates to CCC TIP scheme 911 

• Our third priority is a cycle way and footpath along the old railway bed 
between Chatteris and Somersham. This relates to CCC TIP scheme 449. 

2.3.5 The separate package of approved schemes was as follows: 

• Chatteris  
o Bridge Street/High Street, - crossing improvements 
o Wenny Road, - crossing improvements and speed review 

• Whittlesey A605 
o Eastrea Road - crossing improvements east of Sir Harry Smith 

School. 
o North side of Peterborough Road and West End (from Crossway 

Hand to Whitmore Street controlled crossing): re-engineer 
footpath and existing grass verge and install missing dropped 
kerbs to provide all-weather route for cyclists, mobility aid users 
and pedestrians where feasible. 

• Whittlesey - NCN63 route: 

Page 16



o New Road - signage improvements, crossing improvements and 
speed review 

o Stonald Road - signage improvements, crossing improvements 
and speed review 

o Off road link to Peterborough City Centre - signage 
improvements, lighting and CCTV provision 

o Route improvements from New Road to Turves to make NCN63 
an all-weather cycle route, together with signage improvements. 

• Wisbech  
o Ramnoth Road, - shared use path extension using existing 

verges at front of CWA and speed review 
o Leverington Road, - path widening in proximity to Peckover 

school and crossing improvements 

• Missing footpaths 
o Review footpath provision across villages to identify and (where 

possible) install missing sections. To include East Park Street, 
Church Lane and Doddington Road in Chatteris and in Wisbech 
along the Tesco side of Cromwell Road from the Tesco 
supermarket to South Brink. 

• March 
o Shared use path extension from Lambs Drove to Wimblington, 

with appropriate signage. 
2.3.6 A Pedestrian and Cycling Strategy for March was produced in April 2020 as 

part of the March Area Transport Strategy (MATS).  MATS is being delivered 
by Cambridgeshire County Council with funding from Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Combined Authority. This strategy consisted of walking and 
cycling audits across the town for key routes, safe routes to school audits for 
all the schools in the town and a pedestrian and cycling signage audit. The 
above packages were completed setting out wide ranging recommendations 
across the town with improvement proposals. Further details can be viewed in 
the report from the following website link. March Area Transport Study - 
Pedestrian, Signage and Cycling Strategy (cambridgeshire.gov.uk) 

2.3.7 Since September 2021 good progress has been made in several areas as 
follows: 

• In December 2021, an application for funding of £7.5Million over 4 years 
was submitted to the CPCA. This application intended to secure funding 
with an expectation that this application would fund the feasibility study 
work, detailed design, and construction to complete the initial priority 
schemes and the package of schemes in full.  At the present time we are 
still awaiting the outcome of this application 

• NCN63 - With assistance from CCC and CPCA £20,000 Capability Fund 
money has been secured towards initial feasibility study work along the 
route.   

Page 17

https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/asset-library/March-Area-Transport-Study-Pedestrian-Signage-and-Cycling-Strategy.pdf
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/asset-library/March-Area-Transport-Study-Pedestrian-Signage-and-Cycling-Strategy.pdf


• Chatteris A141 missing footpath linking Doddington Road to A141 
roundabout including footpath widening. This proposal links with the Land 
at Womb Farm, Doddington Road, Chatteris planning application 
approval. The initial approval included improved footpath links between 
Doddington Road and the Tesco Store.  An area of this route not covered 
by the planning application was a necessary section to the north for 
improved connectivity from Doddington Road to the A141 Roundabout. As 
this also improves access to employment in the north of Chatteris it is an 
essential link.  Since September 2021, there have been additional 
opportunities through the planning process for discussion about this 
additional link.  In March 2022, a non- material amendment approval was 
given to the developer by FDC Planning and this now includes the whole 
route along Doddington Road to the A141.  Work is progressing on site 
and a programme for the highway works including the footpath requires 
planning authority approval prior to first occupation.  

• Chatteris to Somersham cycle way and footpath along the old railway bed 
- Initial work has identified that it will require significant funding to upgrade 
this route to make it suitable for all weathers. Initial survey work will also 
require consideration of sections where tree routes may be a challenge. 
Discussion with Somersham PC was also essential in respect of the 
furthest end of the route. Despite an early understanding of support for 
this scheme, Somersham PC more recently have indicated that they do 
not wish to see the development of this route. The MP’s office also tried to 
assist with the discussions and encourage them to change their mind but 
to no avail. Without support from Somersham for this scheme, it is 
suggested that this cannot be taken any further at the present time.  

• For the remaining schemes identified above, discussions have been 
ongoing about the procurement for survey, scoping and feasibility study 
work.  It has been confirmed that a separate tender exercise will be 
needed. This will be funded through the remaining Walking, Cycling and 
Mobility Aid Strategy funding approved by Cabinet in September 2021.   

 
2.3.8 Following the 2020 publication of the March Walking and Cycling Strategy 

referred to in paragraph 2.3.6.  CCC Commissioned Milestone and Capita to 
undertake feasibility study work. This commission completed in September 
2022.  It reviewed and assessed the original 90 schemes within the strategy.  
It was acknowledged that since then some schemes have been completed or 
superseded in line with other initiatives - CCC LCWIP, the Government ‘Gear 
Change’ initiative, the March Future High Street proposals and other schemes 
in the MATS project. Several schemes were also grouped into packages due 
to their similarity e.g., signing schemes or because they were in the same or a 
similar location.  The feasibility study has therefore created a package of 28 
schemes that were then costed and prioritised to create a programme of 
works as follows:     

• Phase 1 – these include 7 locations only requiring minimal work, i.e. road 
markings and non-illuminated signage. This phase is programmed from 
November 2022 to March 2023 subject to funding 

Page 18



• Phase 2(a) – these include 10 locations where the project scope only has one 
only for design, but required further site surveys and intrusive investigations, 
3rd party approvals and additional detailed design.  This phase is programmed 
from November 2022 to April 2023 subject to funding 

• Phase 2(b) – these include the remaining 11 locations, where there are 
multiple options applicable requiring further surveys, 3rd party approvals and 
additional design. This phase is programmed from September 2022 to March 
2023 subject to funding 

 
2.3.9 In September 2022 a March Area Transport Study paper is being taken to the 

CPCA Transport and Infrastructure Committee and the CPCA Board.  This 
paper includes a proposal to draw down £562,800 to deliver the next phase of 
the Walking and Cycling Strategy as set out in paragraph 2.3.8 above.   
 

2.4      Next Steps and timetable 
2.4.1 Should Cabinet accept the recommendations in this report, the Fenland 

Walking, Cycling and Mobility Aid strategy will be adopted as Version 2.   
2.4.2 A range of actions will initially be taken forward to deliver schemes within the 

Fenland Walking, Cycling and Mobility Aid Strategy as follows: 

• The priority scheme actions as set out in paragraphs 2.3.7 and 2.3.8 will 
be delivered 

• The village missing footpath and missing link audits will commence. The 
reporting process to enable stakeholders and members of the public to 
report missing links will be established.  

• Additional follow up discussions will be held with CPCA about the funding 
application submitted to them in December 2021.   

• Other funding applications will also be considered and take forward as the 
priority schemes move through the different project stages.  

• Subject to the outcome of the CPCA Transport and Infrastructure 
Committee and the CPCA Board meetings in September 2022, the March 
Walking and Cycling schemes as set out in paragraph 2.3.8 will be 
delivered between now and Spring 2023. 

2.4.3 All other elements of the Fenland Walking Cycling and Mobility Aid Strategy 
will be taken forward as set out in the strategy document. It should be noted that the 
full strategy includes a phased proposal over time. 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 In September 2021 Cabinet asked for additional consultation to be undertaken 

concerning version 1 of the strategy. This has now been completed and the 
comments have been addressed. Strong support for the strategy including its 
aims and objectives remain.  Good progress is being made on delivering the 

Page 19



initial projects.  It is therefore considered that version 2 of the strategy should 
be adopted by Cabinet.  

 
4 CONSULTATION 
 
2.4 Please refer to section 2.2 above which sets out the details of two public 

consultations. This report details the results of those consultations with details 
as to how the feedback has been considered.   

 
5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
5.1 Alternative options were not considered. Fenland District has an infrastructure 

deficit across all modes of travel.   Connectivity for walking, cycling and users 
of mobility aids is particularly poor across Fenland.  This strategy and 
supporting action plans of schemes is therefore necessary to address this 
deficit.   

 
6 IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Legal Implications 
 
6.1.1 There are no legal implications. 
 
 
6.2 Financial Implications 
 
6.2.1 There is no additional funding ask from FDC beyond what was approved by 

Cabinet at its meeting in November 2020.  The total contribution from FDC 
therefore being £28,835. This £28,835 was made up of £21,335 from FDC and 
£7,500 from the Hereward Community Rail Partnership (CRP).   Since 
November 2022, £17,137 has been spent and £11,698 remains to complete the 
tasks as previously agreed.  The £11,698 remaining will be £7,500 from the 
Hereward CRP and £4,198 from FDC. Further details about the finance 
approval from November 2020 can be found in paragraph 6.2.3 below or in the 
Cabinet paper from that date, a link to which can be found above. 

 
6.2.2 Substantial additional funding will be required to deliver the strategy including 

walking and cycling schemes and projects. Delivery of the strategy will therefore 
be reliant upon income that will be secured over a number of years.  It is 
expected that such monies will come from a range of third-party sources.  FDC 
and other organisations will seek to deliver projects in partnership and to secure 
the funding needed for scheme delivery.   

 
 
6.2.3 On 17th November 2020, a report was presented to FDC Cabinet 

recommending funding the development of a Fenland Cycling, Walking and 
Mobility Strategy incorporating the findings from the March Area Transport 
Study Walking and Cycling Strategy (April 2020). This recommendation was 

Page 20



approved along with a contribution from the Hereward Community Rail 
Partnership to develop the strategy.  The funding recommendations approved 
by Cabinet as follows: 

• the 6 schemes within the 17 November 2020 paper were approved as 
preferred schemes with 3 priority schemes to be worked up and costed 
straight way. The cost for this initial work is expected to be £3,000.  

• It is recommended that the delivery of the Fenland Cycling, Walking and 
Mobility Strategy be approved to take place as soon as possible at a cost 
of £25,835. The Hereward Community Rail Partnership agreed to 
contribute £7.5k. Therefore, a further £18,335 was required from FDC to 
develop the strategy. This included taking forward the initial package of 
schemes. 

• The total amount of FDC funding recommended for approval was 
therefore £21,335 (£18,335 + £3,000) plus the £7,500 Hereward CRP 
Contribution. 

  
 
 
 
6.3 Equality Implications 
 
6.3.1 The development and delivery of this strategy will show a positive benefit to 

residents and visitors to Fenland.  It is currently difficult to make many journeys 
on foot, by bike or using mobility aids. The delivery of this strategy aims to 
address this matter and create a network or routes to enable walking and 
cycling across Fenland. Many of these journeys cannot be made in this way at 
present.  20% of all households across Fenland do not have access to a car. 
Walking and cycling improvements will also assist people living in these 
households to travel more easily and independently. 

 

 

Page 21



1 
 

 
  

Fenland District Council 

FENLAND CYCLING, 
WALKING AND MOBILITY 

AID IMPROVEMENT 
STRATEGY  

Version 2 – 2022 (pending approval) 

 

Page 22



  

2 
 

C O N T E N T S  

1. Background………………………………………………………………….……………………………………..Page 3 - 11 
1.1 Fenland Context……………………………………………………………………………..Page 3 
1.2 Need for a Local Strategy………………………………………………………………..Page 3 
1.3 Related Plans and Strategies…………………………………………………………..Page 5 
1.4 Strategy Considerations of Different Modes of Travel…………………….Page 6 

 

2. Methodology………………………………………………………………………………………………………………Page 10  
 

3. Project Delivery……………………………………………………………………………………………………Page 11 – 15 
 

4. Strategy……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 16 – 20 
4.1 Aim……………………………………………………………………………………..………..Page 16 
4.2 Objectives………………………………………………………………..…………………..Page 16 
4.3 Strategy Approach………………………………………………………………………..Page 17 
4.4 Strategy Priorities…………………………………………………………………………Page 17 

 
5. Policies and Delivery Approach…………………………………………………………………………...Page 20 – 24 

5.1 Core Policies…………………………………………………………………………………Page 20 
5.2 Funding and Scheme Delivery……………………………………………………….Page 21 
5.3 Delivering the Strategy and Measuring Progress…………………………..Page 23 
5.4 Strategy Review…………………………………………………………………………….Page 24 

 
6. Action Plan and Schemes…………………………………………………………………………………..…Page 25 – 32 

6.1 Action Plan…………………………………………………………………………………..Page 25 
6.2 Physical Interventions……………………………………………………….………….Page 25 
6.3 Recommendations for Chatteris…………………………………………..………Page 27 
6.4 Recommendations for March………………………………………….……………Page 28 
6.5 Recommendations for Whittlesey………………………………….…………….Page 29 
6.6 Recommendations for Wisbech……………………………………..…….………Page 30 
6.7 Strategic Corridors between Major Settlements…………..………..…….Page 31 
6.8 Missing Footpaths and Member Priorities…………………..……….……….Page 32 

 
7. Progress Tracking and Reporting…………………………………………………………………………….……Page 33 

 
8. Appendix………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………Page 34 

1. Related Plans and Strategies  
2. Action Plan: Targets and Measurables 
3. Chatteris Recommendations 
4. March Recommendations 
5. Whittlesey Recommendations 
6. Wisbech Recommendations  

 

 

 
  

Page 23



  

3 
 

1 .  BACKGROUND 
1.1 Fenland Context 

Location 

Fenland is located in Cambridgeshire and is situated north of Cambridge and east of Peterborough. The area 
is approximately 200 square miles in total and features mainly agricultural fen land. It is a rural and sparsely 
populated district, famous for its flat landscapes and big skies.  

Population 

The total population of Fenland is around 102,5001with the majority residing in or near to the four Fenland 
market towns of Chatteris, March, Whittlesey and Wisbech. Fenland also has a high percentage of older 
residents with around 30% of the total population aged over 60.  

Deprivation and poor health 

Based on the Index of Multiple Deprivation, Fenland is Cambridgeshire’s most deprived district (ranking as 
94th most deprived authority out of 326 nationally). Poor health is also a key issue for Fenland with the 
following key indicators significantly worse in Fenland compared to the England average: 

• Life expectancy for men 

• Levels of obesity amongst children 

• Levels of physical activity amongst adults 

• Levels of people diagnosed with obesity 

 

Highway network 

Due to the rurality of the area and the historic nature of the market towns that developed along the route of 
the river Nene, road links from town to village and onwards consist of a mix of fast and winding country 
lanes and busy (mostly) single carriageway A roads. Travel by road to connect to wider links is therefore 
often slow, especially in comparison to using rail. 

Within towns the road network, particularly in the town centres, is also heavily constrained due to relative 
narrow streets, high parking demands and in some cases limited river crossings.  

As a rural district there is a high dependency on motorised vehicles due to the agricultural nature of the local 
economy and dispersed village settlements between towns. Significant levels of heavy goods vehicles (HGVs) 
and longer distance journey requirements for a significant number of residents make opportunities to 
reallocate road space for walking and cycling more limited and challenging. 

 

1.2 The need for a Local Strategy  

Health Agenda & Climate Change 

Encouraging more walking and cycling has long been recognised as a key objective to improving physical and 
mental health and to reducing carbon emissions to defend against climate change. However, Fenland has 
received limited funding for infrastructure provision to date and is therefore lacking a consistent walking and 
cycling network to build upon. 

 
1 Source Population and household estimates, England and Wales: Census 2021 - Office for National Statistics 
(ons.gov.uk)  

Page 24

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationandhouseholdestimatesenglandandwalescensus2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationandhouseholdestimatesenglandandwalescensus2021


  

4 
 

Piecemeal opportunities in the past have provided small scale route improvements across the district such as 
Elwyn Road (March) and Cromwell Road (Wisbech) shared use paths. However, these are few and far 
between and require more time and investment as well as further improvement to create a good quality 
network of routes enabling walking and cycling to all key locations in each town.  

Strategically, we have identified an overriding need to provide viable off-road cycle routes between our four 
towns, and between Whittlesey and Peterborough. 

Even with a high portion of residents having no access to a car (20%) journey statistics show that the portion 
of journeys undertaken by foot or by bicycle within each Fenland town is relatively low. This is despite most 
journeys within each town being less than 1 mile (average distance from outer residential developments to 
town centre).  These figures suggest more work is needed to improve routes and encourage walking and 
cycling as the first choice of transport for short journeys. 

 

Supporting Local Growth 

Predicted growth for Fenland in the current Fenland Local Plan (May 2014) includes aims for around 11,000 
new homes with large new housing areas on the edge of Wisbech, March, Chatteris and Whittlesey. 
Significant levels of housing development have been delivered since the plan was adopted especially in the 
villages and in Whittlesey.  Plans for more new homes and increased employment opportunities are 
expected to be included in the emerging Fenland Local Plan to 2040. Detail regarding the emerging plan can 
be found here: Emerging Local Plan - Fenland District Council 

With housing growth and development comes an increasing pressure on the highway network. Work is 
underway to understand and deliver necessary highway improvements to accommodate growing demand. 
Alongside this, it is an important priority to ensure that unnecessary travel by car is minimised wherever 
possible and encourage a shift to sustainable transport to reduce congestion and lower vehicle emissions in 
our area. 

 

Covid Recovery – Green Restart 

The 2020-2021 global COVID-19 pandemic saw the entire country lockdown, with every individual (with the 
exception of essential workers) required to stay home to save lives. Essential trips permitted solely to access 
food, medicine and healthcare and central government encouragement to make use of the maximum one 
hour outside the home for exercise per day saw a large rise in walking and cycling uptake across the country. 
This is a shift in travel behaviour that is important to maintain and continue. 

During the pandemic, businesses have been put under extraordinary strain, with many, large and small, at 
risk of not surviving. To help support these businesses and to keep emissions low by discouraging longer 
journeys a key message is to ‘shop locally’. Travel for such journeys is well suited to walking and cycling. 

 

Funding Requirements & Criteria 

To encourage and support the growing shift towards walking and cycling the DfT released a series of funds in 
2020 to enable Local Authorities to improve cycling infrastructure. Criteria for this funding included 
prioritising road space for walking and cycling and the creation of off road, segregated cycling routes.  

Fenland achieved limited funding from the 2020 Active Travel Fund due to a lack of options that prioritise 
road space. This highlighted the need to re-evaluate schemes identified for the area and ensure public 
support for recommendations.  

It is the intention of this strategy to identify clear priorities and recommend schemes to address Fenlands 
previously low funding achievements for walking and cycling. However, due to the area's currently 

Page 25

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/newlocalplan


  

5 
 

unavoidable reliance on motor vehicles for access to key services and longer distance journeys, this strategy 
will not consider recommendations that would increase pressure on the existing highway network. 

 

1.3 Related Plans & Strategies  

There are currently a range of existing strategies and adopted plans relating to walking and cycling that are 
relevant to Fenland. This document considers and incorporates key priorities across a number of these 
strategies, particularly those that support the needs and aspirations of our rural district. Identifying and 
including related objectives that align to the purpose of this strategy is an important part of developing a 
clear plan for infrastructure improvements and provides a strengthened case for schemes that may 
otherwise be overlooked. 

Summary of Plan and Strategy documents: 

 

National Strategy Published 

National Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy 1  2017 

Gear Change: A bold vision for walking and cycling in England 2020 

National Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy 2 2021 

Local Transport Note – LTN 1/20 Cycle infrastructure Design 2020 

  

Local Strategy  Published 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2020 

Cambridgeshire Local Cycling Walking Investment Plan 2021 

CCC Transport Investment Plan Annual 

Fenland Local Plan (adopted) 2014* 

Market Town Transport Strategies (MTTS): 

Chatteris (2010) 

March (2013) 

Whittlesey (2012) 

Wisbech (2014) 

 

2010 

2013 

2012 

2014 

Fenland Transport Strategy – adoption expected 2023 Development in 
progress 

CCC Active Travel Strategy – adoption expected 2023 Development in 
progress 

March Area Transport Study (MATS) 2013 & 2020 

Right of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2016 

Wisbech Access Strategy (WAS) 2017 

 

More details regarding these strategies and key points relating to this strategy can be found in Appendix 1. 

* Detail regarding the emerging Local Plan can be found here: Emerging Local Plan - Fenland District Council  

Page 26

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/newlocalplan


  

6 
 

 

1.4 Strategy consideration of different modes of travel  

The following sections set out the modes of travel considered within this strategy and the rationale behind 
this. 

Walking and Cycling 

Shifting travel trends away from the private car to walking and cycling is known to have numerous benefits 
including promoting healthier lifestyles, reducing traffic congestion and improving air quality2. 

Around 25% of all car trips across Fenland and Cambridgeshire are under 2km in length3 and yet walking and 
cycling accounts for only 1% of journeys in Chatteris, Whittlesey and Wisbech and around 2% of all journeys 
in March4. 

Prior to the pandemic, Fenland had a relatively low uptake in walking and cycling at around 4.9% modal 
share in 2019. This is expected to have increased during lockdown due to the stay at home messages but 
more needs to be done to continue this shift and embed walking and cycling as the first choice for short 
journeys. 

Electric-assisted pedal bicycles (e-bikes)  

E-bike is the term generally used for pedal bicycles that include a small motor that provides additional power 
when cycling. In recent years, these have become increasingly popular and have been the subject of a 
number of trials introducing hire versions in towns and cities across the UK. This includes a current project in 
Cambridge and Huntingdon delivered by the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority (CPCA). 

E-bikes are particularly useful for local journeys as they can make cycling accessible to people who might 
otherwise find it difficult, such as the elderly and those with health problems. By providing motorised 
assistance an E-bike requires less physical effort to generate movement. This can enable cyclists to travel 
more quickly, reducing journey times, and make longer distance journeys more achievable.  

A connected cycling network across Fenland could provide the opportunity for e-bikes to be used instead of 
cars for journeys between towns and villages. This potential is particularly strong in Whittlesey where the 
NCN63 provides an entirely off-road route to Peterborough Town Centre. A journey that can be completed 
by e-bike in as little as 20 minutes. 

E-bikes, known as ‘electric assisted pedal cycles’ or ‘EAPC’s have the same legal standing as regular non-
assisted bicycles - although users must be 14 years of age or over. There are specific criteria that separates 
EAPCs from other ‘e-bike like’ machines such as speed-pedelecs or throttle controlled bikes. This criteria can 
be found at Electric bikes: licensing, tax and insurance - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).  

 

Mobility Scooters 

Life expectancy has been gradually increasing from around 75 years in 1990 to around 81 in 20205. As a 
result the population across the entire country is growing and also getting older. This is especially the case in 
Fenland as people are attracted to move to or remain in the quieter countryside for their retirement. The 
aging population is one reason that mobility aid use, such as scooters or electric wheelchairs, is becoming 
increasingly prevalent.  

 
2 Source: https://www.sustrans.org.uk/media/5949/bikelife19_greater-cambridge_web.pdf  
3 Source: 2011 Census and Transport/Health JSNA  
4 Source: CCC Traffic Monitoring Report 2019 
5 Source: U.K. Life Expectancy 1950-2021 | MacroTrends  

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/electric-bike-rules
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/media/5949/bikelife19_greater-cambridge_web.pdf
https://www.macrotrends.net/countries/GBR/united-kingdom/life-expectancy


  

7 
 

There are a wide range of different mobility aids available. These provide essential opportunities for people 
with restricted mobility whether due to age related infirmity, ill health or disability. Enabling people to retain 
independence and active living regardless of their physical circumstance. 

A license is not required to drive a mobility scooter or powered wheelchair, but other rules may apply 
depending on the type of vehicle. These can be found at Mobility scooters and powered wheelchairs: the 
rules - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).  

The flat landscape of Fenland makes mobility scooters or powered wheelchairs a very viable option for 
people with restricted mobility. This is something the strategy aims to support. To achieve this more work is 
needed to understand where improvements can be made to existing routes to create better access and 
opportunities for mobility aid use. Key considerations for this are the provision of dropped kerbs, level 
surfaces and path widths.  

 

Railway Travel 

Fenland boasts three local railway stations, Manea, March and Whittlesea. These are served by three Train 
Operating Companies providing hourly and bihourly services to Peterborough, Ely and Cambridge. Additional 
direct services also include Stansted Airport, Ipswich, Norwich, Nottingham and Birmingham. 

Connection via the railway is a major asset for the area, enabling fast and effective commuter links to major 
employment hubs such as Peterborough, Cambridge and London. Improving walking and cycling access to 
these assets is an essential part of this strategy. 

Improving routes and links to public transport such as Fenland’s railway stations enables longer journeys to 
be undertaken more sustainably. Therefore, developing and improving connections to residential areas 
within 2km (5km for cycling) of each station is an important priority for this strategy. 

       

March Whittlesey 

Page 28

https://www.gov.uk/mobility-scooters-and-powered-wheelchairs-rules
https://www.gov.uk/mobility-scooters-and-powered-wheelchairs-rules


  

8 
 

 
 

 

Bus Services 

Key bus stops/stations are located within the town centres of Whittlesey and Wisbech with many routes also 
converging in the centre of March. These sites are all within 2km of the residential areas of each town.  

             

Manea 

Whittlesey March 

Page 29



  

9 
 

 
 

Improving walking and cycling provision that links with these onward travel opportunities is vital to a 
successful strategy. 

 

Other path users: Equestrians  

Horse riding is not considered to be a method of travel to access places of education and employment and is 
therefore not a transport mode this strategy is aimed at. However, riding is a very important activity in the 
rural community and must be considered and accommodated within wider network links where byways and 
bridleways are in use. New links for connecting towns and villages to improve travel options on foot and by 
bicycle should consider adding value by including provision for other surface users such as equestrians.  

Where improvements are recommended for routes that include equestrian use, their needs, particularly for 
surface types and available space must be carefully considered. This is especially important as walking and 
cycling improvements often require more solid, all weather surfaces which could be restrictive for horse 
riding. Equally, soft grass-based routes could be ‘churned’ by high levels of horse-riding use especially in 
winter months, making these inaccessible for walkers and cyclists. A clear understanding of all user 
requirements and a delicate balance of interventions is essential for the improvement or introduction of 
multi-user routes.  

Wisbech 

Page 30



  

10 
 

2 .  METHODOLOGY 
Project Funding 

In November 2020 FDC Cabinet approved development funding for a Fenland Walking, Cycling and Mobility 
Strategy incorporating the findings from the March Area Transport Study Walking and Cycling Strategy (April 
2020). This included a financial contribution from the Hereward Community Rail Partnership to develop the 
strategy. 

Fenland Transport and Access Group 

The strategy project was overseen by the Fenland Transport and Access Group (TAG), with a Sub-Group of 
TAG members set up to review monthly progress. The TAG is made up of stakeholders from each Town 
Council, the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority, Cambridgeshire County Council, 
Sustrans and the Cambridgeshire Local Access Forum (LAF). Its aim is to ensure that there is one integrated 
approach for transport and accessibility in the Fenland area, one approach to address the challenges of a 
local rural transport network. 

The TAGs involvement in the development of this strategy provided a wide-ranging representation of local 
transport and strategy experts to inform the strategy content. The input and insight provided by Town 
Council Members ensured that local needs remained the key focus of this document.    

Route Review & Stakeholder Engagement 

A desktop review was undertaken in early 2021 to determine key walking and cycling routes in Chatteris, 
Whittlesey and Wisbech. This was also informed by an online public survey carried out through February and 
March 2021 and continuous stakeholder engagement throughout the development of the strategy. 

Feedback was gathered through the survey and engagement relating to how local residents currently travel 
for short local journeys and their views on walking, cycling and mobility aid use in Fenland. The survey 
achieved 734 responses (mostly cyclists) from residents, workers and students in and around Fenland. 
Stakeholder engagement also provided valuable insight from a range of areas including Cycling groups, 
young people in Wisbech and Equestrian representatives. Results from the survey were used to develop the 
strategy and identify best practice for route improvements. 

Route Mapping & Audit 

Routes linking main residential areas to places of education, health care and employment were mapped out 
for each Fenland Town. A high-level audit reviewing current provision in terms of path widths, lighting and 
opportunity for improvements was carried out on each section. The resulting scheme recommendations 
from this work are set out in Section 6: Action Plan & Recommendations. 

Strategy Approval 

The first draft of this strategy, Version 1, was adopted as policy by FDC Cabinet in September 2021. This 
document is the second version of the strategy, revised following a full public consultation.  

Strategy Review – Public Consultation 2021/2022  

A public consultation was undertaken in December 2021/January 2022 inviting views and comments 
regarding the adopted strategy content, action plan and recommendations.  A total of 64 complete survey 
responses were received. The results of this survey and views provided were used to revise and update the 
document, creating Version 2 of the Fenland Cycling, Walking and Mobility Improvement Strategy. 

Page 31



  

11 
 

3 .PROJECT DELIVERY 
Initial Survey Work & Feedback 

Initial survey work undertaken in early 2021 as part of developing this strategy asked local residents and 
visitors to Fenland key questions relating to walking, cycling and mobility scooter use. 734 surveys were 
completed in total.  

Almost all participants stated they either live, work or access education in Fenland with a few (1%) 
living/working nearby. 

Questions asked in the survey included ‘Do you travel to work/education/shops/Fenland Railway Stations on 
foot or by bicycle’ and ‘What would encourage you to walk/cycle more?’.  

From the survey results 685 people stated they were able to ride a bike and 692 stated they were able to 
walk distances of 1 mile, with only 30 stating they did not have access to a car. Most participants stated they 
accessed some local services either on foot, by bicycle or using a mobility scooter with access to local shops 
being the most popular journey. 

These results are set out in the tables below:  

 

685
624

692

31

704

49
110

42

703

30

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Are you able to ride a
bike?

Do you have access to a
bicycle?

Are you able to walk
distances of up to 1

mile?

Do you use a mobility
aid (such as mobility
scooter or powered

wheelchair)?

Do you own or have
access to a car?

Access and Ability

Yes No

Page 32



  

12 
 

 
 

Preferred improvements for Fenland  

Using the responses from the survey the following information has been collated to show the improvements 
local residents, workers and visitors feel would most help them choose to walk or cycle more or provide 
them with better mobility scooter access. 

 

 

97

13
50

9

256

135 134
72

26

138
94

497

284

84
3 3 5 2 23 17 11

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Do you travel by bicycle, foot or mobility aid to these places?  

By Bicycle By Foot By Mobilty Scooter or Powered Wheelchair

386

359

263

178

422

331

163

151

74

0 100 200 300 400 500

Direct routes or shortcuts

Quiet/low traffic routes

Shared Use Paths

Wayfinding signage

Good quality surfaces (all weather, lighting,…

Wider footpaths

Route information (i.e. Maps)

Controlled pedestrian crossings (Toucan,…

Uncontrolled pedestrian crossings…

What would encourage you to travel more on foot?  

Page 33



  

13 
 

 

528

333

352

477

195

222

110

225

63

72

134

61

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

Off Road Cycle Routes

On Road Cycle Lanes

Shared Use Paths

Good quality surfaces (all weather, lighting,…

Wayfinding signage

Route information (i.e. Maps)

Controlled crossings (Toucan)

Cycle parking

Cycle proficiency/confidence training for cycling

Bicycle maintenance training

Cycle awareness training for non cyclists

Access to bicycles and accessories (helmets,…

What would encourage you to travel by bicycle?  

Page 34



  

14 
 

 
 
Route Mapping & Audits 

Key routes were selected through a mapping exercise to identify the main connecting options for travelling 
between major residential areas and learning or employment zones within Chatteris, March, Whittlesey and 
Wisbech.  

Strategic links between settlements have also been identified using the existing National Cycling Network 
(NCN) routes and the A141 between Guyhirn and Chatteris. In addition, these routes have been linked in 
places to provide circular routes and improve the connection of the network. 

A high-level audit was undertaken along each route mapped out for the four Fenland Towns. Each route was 
assessed for:  

• opportunities to widen paths for pedestrians and mobility aid users 
• missing sections of footpath 
• dropped kerb provision 
• potential for crossing improvements 
• potential for segregated cycle lanes or shared use paths 
• adequate signage 

The routes identified and recommendations resulting from this audit are set out under each town in Section 
6 Action plan & recommendations. 

 

34

39

57

50

17

62

17

18

24

35

19

27

24

15

26

21

18

28

23

31

32

28

3

9

7

5

24

3

0

16

11

10

16

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Direct routes or shortcuts

Quiet/low traffic routes

Dropped kerbs

Wider paths

Wayfinding

Quality surfaces

Route information

User training

Awareness training

Controlled crossing

Uncontrolled crossing

What would improve your abilility to travel by Mobility Aid?  

Not Important Important Very Important

Page 35



  

15 
 

Strategy review and Public Consultation 2021/2022 

Version 1 of the strategy was put to public consultation in December 2021/January 2022 inviting views and 
comments on the adopted strategy content, action plan and recommendations. The consultation was 
advertised online via Facebook, Twitter and the Fenland District Council website. A press article was also 
featured in the local newspapers and adverts displayed in key locations across each town and village.  

A total of 64 complete survey responses were received. Of these responses 89% supported the overall 
approach to the strategy. With comments including “This is urgently required”, “I think the action plan is 
very well thought out”, “Some great suggestions to improve pedestrian access to schools”.  

The remaining 7 respondents stated they were not in favour of the strategy approach for the following 
reasons:  

• the content needs to provide more focus on villages,  
• the schemes identified should be bolder and  
• no focus on provision for equestrians within this strategy.  

With the exception of specific provision for equestrians within the strategy (see 1.4 Strategy consideration of 
different modes of travel) the strategy document has now been revised to better incorporate views provided 
through this consultation. 

The full consultation results will be made available on the Fenland District Council website. 
  

Page 36



  

16 
 

4 .  STRATEGY 
Introduction 

It is recognised that across Fenland district there will be different requirements and different walking and 
cycling constraints. This means that there is not a ‘one size fits all’ solution for making walking and cycling 
the first choice for short journeys. However, there are key elements to creating consistency across all routes 
and successfully promoting sustainable travel.  

This strategy sets out core objectives that can be applied in all instances. The objectives aim to provide 
enough flexibility to ensure that even challenging locations can achieve realistic improvements and are not 
left behind if resolutions are difficult. This high level, approved approach ensures identified schemes and 
projects are well supported and can compete for funding on a national level, with the intention of giving 
Fenland the best chance of overall success. 

The following chapter sets out the strategic aims, objectives, approach and priorities for encouraging walking 
and cycling and developing a connected walking and cycling network in Fenland.  

4.1 Aim 

“To achieve a greater level of walking and cycling for people of all ages and abilities across 
Fenland. Through the development of a safe and integrated route network focussing on access 
between and into the market towns, to improve safety in both towns and villages and connect 
strategic corridors between major settlements.”  

4.2 Objectives 

These core objectives are essential to the success of this strategy: 

 

 

Place
Create the best conditions and 

infrastructure for walking, cycling 
and mobilty aid use across Fenland 
particluarly for access to places of 

education, employment, health 
care and essential services.

People
Ensure everyone (all ages and 

abilities) has access to good quality 
routes that feel safe, giving them 
confidence to make walking and 
cycling their first choice for local 

journeys.

Promotion
Aid and encourage opportunties 
for access and mobility through a 

range fo methods that 
demonstrate freedom, health and 

wellbeing through local travel.

Page 37



  

17 
 

4.3 Strategy Approach 

Main focus 

Initially, this strategy's main focus is to encourage more people to regularly choose walking and cycling as 
their first choice of travel for short journeys. It aims to improve core walking and cycling networks within 
each town and strategic cycle route across Fenland, linking its market towns and connecting Whittlesey to 
Peterborough. Additionally, it recognises that there are key areas of missing pavement, especially in the 
villages outside of the towns. These constitute both a safety hazard and a barrier to walking as opposed to 
driving for local journeys. The strategy seeks to promote route connections both for pedestrians and for 
cyclists to and from residential areas to key locations for health, education, employment and leisure 
including, where possible, improved connectivity to the three Fenland Railway Stations. 

 

Phasing 

To achieve meaningful improvement to cycling and walking routes, as well as providing missing pedestrian 
infrastructure, a phased approach and strategy review programme is needed. Phasing and reviews will be set 
out to expand on what has been completed to date as scheme delivery is achieved. It is recognised that 
within all strategy phases route safety not only in towns but in villages must be a priority.  

 

Funding 

A district network of walking and cycling routes is a purposefully ambitious long-term aim which will depend 
on available funding and the opportunities to deliver infrastructure schemes. It is not expected that Fenland 
District Council will achieve this alone as there is much work to be done to improve Fenland walking and 
cycling infrastructure to the same standards enjoyed by other parts of the country.  It is therefore intended 
that this strategy and the recommendations within it are well supported and clearly align with existing local 
and national objectives. This will ensure the schemes and projects can be taken forward by Fenland District 
Council or any relevant authority or appropriate organisation. Working together to make use of every 
opportunity will be key to the success of this strategy. 

 

4.4 Strategy Priorities 

Access to key locations 

To embed walking and cycling as the first choice for travelling short distances this strategy is specifically 
targeting access to health, education, employment and leisure. By encouraging walking and cycling into 
every-day essential journeys this strategy aims to reduce car reliance and increase healthier choices when it 
comes to all journeys. This focus also has the additional and equally important benefit of improving access 
for people without a car. With better access opportunities for working, learning and earning attainment can 
also be raised for more people.  

 

Multi-mode journeys 

Multi-mode journeys are undertaken by mixing walking and cycling with other forms of transport. This is 
significantly important to enable longer journeys to be achieved without the use of a car.  

The three Fenland railway stations in particular link the district quickly and easily to major employment and 
education hubs like Cambridge and Peterborough as well as to the rest of England and the UK beyond. Train 
journey times are typically much faster than any road option across Fenland. With work underway to 

Page 38



  

18 
 

improve the three Fenland stations to encourage greater use and better service frequencies, this travel 
option is expected to be even more important in the future.   

As highlighted earlier in this strategy document, significant portions of Manea, March and Whittlesey’s 
residential areas are within 2km of a Fenland railway station. As the remainder of both towns and the 
villages of Manea, Eastrea and Coates are within 5km of a station this also provides strong opportunities for 
cycling links. 

Chatteris and Wisbech are less well connected to the Fenland railway stations with regards to walking and 
cycling opportunities due to the distances involved. For example, Wisbech Town Centre to March Station is 
10 miles, Chatteris Town Centre is 8.5 miles to March Station or 7 miles to Manea Station. However, 
increasing use of e-bikes and their ability to make longer distances achievable for more people mean that 
longer cycling networks are becoming more viable. Improving longer distance connections between these 
towns and the railway by way of cycle route improvements to the NCN 63, A141 and between Chatteris and 
Manea is included within this strategy.  

Access to bus services is also a key link for our rural towns, enabling onward travel to other destinations 
without the use of a car as well providing additional options for shorter journeys for those less mobile. 
Taking more cars off the road by using public transport not only reduces congestion but supports these often 
under used services which are essential for those without access to a private vehicle. An example of this for 
longer journeys is the Excel bus service. This provide links from Wisbech and Guyhirn to Peterborough and 
King’s Lynn railway stations. 

Promoting these sustainable transport modes is included in the action plan for this strategy along with route 
improvement recommendations to these hubs. 

 
Developing a Fenland-wide walking and cycling network  

This strategy and the recommendations within it aim to consider the network as a whole. It is purposefully 
ambitious but realistic in terms of what can (or cannot) be achieved at this time.  

Improving existing infrastructure and addressing localised gaps in the network is the starting point, or 
building block, to creating a truly connected Fenland-wide network. 

Strategic links between settlements have been identified using the existing National Cycling Network (NCN) 
routes and the A141 between Guyhirn and Chatteris. In addition, these routes have been linked in places to 
provide circular routes and improve the connection of the network. 

It is important to note that while routes have been identified as the most likely desire lines within each town 
and for journeys between each this does not mean that every road or pathway is suitable for infrastructure 
improvements. Potential options for alternative route recommendations must be included where necessary. 

 
Encouraging travel choice and reducing other travel barriers 

A good quality connected network of routes is not the only provision this strategy recommends to support 
and encourage walking, cycling and mobility in Fenland. While infrastructure is the most prominent 
requirement, promotion and encouragement also play an important part in changing travel behaviours. 

Wisbech Travel Choices, Hereward CRP promotion, Walk to School Week and other Personal Travel Planning 
projects have all been successful at achieving varying levels of modal shift. These methods should be part of 
a regular commitment in Fenland to embed walking and cycling as a priority for all. For cycling in particular, 
access to equipment is also key, as is provision of secure cycle parking facilities.  

Issues around cycle theft and vandalism have been highlighted by a number of members of the public 
through the engagement exercises undertaken for this strategy. Public responses to the strategy 
engagement suggest this to be particularly prevalent in Wisbech.  

Page 39



  

19 
 

This is supported by statics published at www.police.uk  which shows the reported bike thefts are as follows: 

Area 
Total thefts reported between June 

2020 and June 2021 (1 year) 
Total thefts reported between 

June 2018 and June 2021 (3 
years) 

Wisbech 78 250 

March & Chatteris 20 124 

Whittlesey 4 23 

This localised data shows that variations to the recommendations for a particular place based on specific 
needs, such as cycle pods rather than more standard cycle parking for Wisbech is an important part of this 
strategy. 
  

Page 40

http://www.police.uk/


  

20 
 

5 .  POLICIES & DELIVERY APPROACH 
Introduction 

For the successful delivery this strategy needs to be underpinned with principles of action set out as policy. 
This chapter provides details of these policies and explains the delivery approach. 

 

5.1 Core Policies 

Place 
Create a high-level strategy for a consistent 
and connected network of cycling and walking 
routes between and into each Fenland town to 
link residential areas with places of education 
and employment. To address safety gaps in 
the rural network and develop a core route 
link across Fenland. 

 

This will be achieved by the development of this strategy 
and include a regular programme of review to ensure 
policies and scheme recommendations remain up to date 
and in line with public requirements and related strategies 
such as the emerging local plan. 

 

Develop walking and cycling exemplar 
infrastructure within our Market Towns, 
resolve safety gaps in villages and enhance 
core route links across Fenland. 

 

This will be achieved by  

• identify gaps in the network and recommendations for 
existing routes including improvements to facilitate 
better access for mobility aid users.  

• Addressing safety concerns for walkers and cyclists. 
• actively sourcing funding opportunities for scheme 

delivery 
• enabling supporting infrastructure such as cycle 

parking  

 

Maintain a consistent and ongoing approach 
to network improvements relating to walking 
and cycling routes and access to places of 
education, employment and health. 

 

This will be achieved by regularly reviewing route and 
network requirements and publishing a list of approved 
scheme recommendations. This list can be used by any 
relevant local authorities or highway providers for scheme 
funding.  

 

 

People 
Enable walking and cycling in safety and 
confidence for people of all ages 

 

This will be achieved by education and training, providing 
access to equipment such as bicycles or safety items such 
as hi-vis wear.  

 

Facilitate opportunities to travel and This will be achieved by supporting integrated transport 

Page 41



  

21 
 

demonstrate making local walking and cycling 
journeys 

 

journeys especially to railway and bus stations, promoting 
routes and providing cycling and walking maps. 

 

Encourage mobility and walking and cycling as 
a first choice for local journeys. 

 

This will be achieved by championing solutions to support 
the use of mobility aids, supporting walking and cycling for 
health schemes, access and links to green spaces and 
corridors and leisure routes 

 

 

Promotion 
Communication through a range of mediums 
and media to promote routes and 
opportunities for local travel 

This will be achieved by cycling and walking map 
development, highlighting travel options for festivals and 
events and participating in local and national sustainable 
travel promotions. 

 

Commission and deliver exemplar mobility 
projects and good practice examples     

 

This will be achieved by the delivery of special projects to 
promote walking, cycling and mobility e.g. Whittlesey 
Heritage Walk, working with other projects to promote 
healthy living and activities to promote user safety, 
considerate behaviour and how to report 
highway/infrastructure faults 

 

Evaluate cycling, walking & mobility aid 
requirements across Fenland and evidence 
progress against strategy targets. 

This will be achieved by developing a customer centred 
evaluation and review process. To include discussion about 
progress with the community and local stakeholders, 
particularly understanding the needs of mobility aid users. 
This will provide ongoing opportunity for public focused 
support and responses, user feedback, route audits, and 
culminate in a published report to demonstrate progress 

 

 

5.2 Funding and Scheme Delivery 

Various levels of funding are required to deliver the work identified in this strategy. This strategy provides 
the baseline information needed to support schemes and proposals. This includes enabling funding 
applications and bids to be submitted to take work forward.  

Network improvements 

All works relating to the public highway and infrastructure must be planned and designed carefully. This 
process takes time.  

The walking and cycling improvement schemes set out in this strategy will need to be delivered through the 
following phases: 

Page 42



  

22 
 

 
The timeframes needed for each phase will be dependent on the size and type of scheme. This strategy 
categorises each scheme as either a short, medium or long term project with the scoping/feasibility and 
design work set into phases. The estimated dates this work will be achieved is set out below -   

 

 Phase 1 Phase 2 Construction 

Short Term By 2027 N/a 2022 – 2028  

Medium Term By 2030 By 2034 2029 – 2035 

Long Term By 2034 By 2040 2036 – 2042  

 

It is important to note that these are estimated timeframes which will be dependent on a variety of factors, 
including available resource and funding opportunities going forward. Business Case work for larger schemes 
may be needed to show value for money and scheme benefits to secure third party funding, in these 
instances this work will need to start well in advance.  

The exception to these timeframes is the schemes being taken forward through the March Area Transport 
Strategy work. Cambridgeshire County Council has secured funding from Cambridgeshire & Peterborough 
Combined Authority for the completion of the short term schemes. Design work for these schemes is being 
undertaken in 2022 and construction is expected to follow shortly. Phase 2 work has also been costed and 
funding options are being explored to complete this through the MATS project.  

 
Funding 

For scheme delivery and other work such as engagement, community and education projects, initial and 
ongoing funding is also required. This is expected to be achieved through a number of routes including but 
not limited to:  

• Capability Funding – this is administered by the DfT and replaces the LSTF and Active Travel Fund 

• CCC Transport Investment Fund – this is an annual fund for local improvements listed within the CCC 
TIP 

• Levelling up Fund – this is available for projects to improve of every-day life across the UK 

• March Area Transport Study (CPCA Funding) 

• Section 106 Developer Contributions 

• Other funding opportunities – British Cycling, Active Travel, Community Rail, Growing Fenland (Civil 
Parking Enforcement) etc. 

As stated earlier in this document, it is not expected that Fenland District Council will achieve the 
infrastructure schemes set out in this strategy alone. The recommendations and delivery phases identified 

Scoping and 
Feasibility

Design Work 
(Prelim, Draft, 

Detailed)
Construction

Page 43



  

23 
 

are therefore able to be taken forward by Fenland District Council or any other relevant authority or 
appropriate organisation. 

 

5.3 Delivering the Strategy and Measuring Progress.  

To maintain momentum and ensure this strategy continues to focus on developing a connected walking and 
cycling network in Fenland, detailed targets and measurables have been developed.  These include: 

 

Place 

• Adopt an up-to-date and supported strategy for walking, cycling and mobility aid users that delivers 
change to increase levels of use.     

• Influence the emerging Fenland Local Plan to ensure walking and cycling are at the centre of new 
developments.       

• Enable, encourage and deliver new infrastructure and improvements to existing routes that improve 
safety and security for pedestrians, cyclist and mobility aid users and facilitates mobility aids users.  
       

• Ensure minimum planning requirements for walking, cycling and mobility are incorporated in housing 
developments. Encourage enhanced provision where possible. 

• Develop a governance and review structure for local transport strategies including the Fenland Cycling, 
Walking and Mobility Improvement Strategy. 

 

 

People 
• Identify, cost and deliver education and training projects to improve walking, cycling and mobility 

confidence. Including opportunities for multi modal journey involving bus and rail travel to enable a 
wider reach using sustainable travel methods.  

• Identify, promote and deliver schemes to support access to essential walking, cycling and mobility 
equipment such as bicycles, safety wear and mobility aids. 

• Identify safety and security matters such as theft, antisocial behaviour and crime and direct these to 
the relevant authority. Highlight and promote infrastructure and route improvements to reduce issues 
and improve safety such as lighting provision and secure cycle parking.  

• Engage with young people to promote walking, cycling and multi modal journeys. 

• Facilitate integrated transport journeys especially to railway and bus stations.  

• Engage with disability groups to explore options to encourage mobility and travel. 

 
 
 

Page 44



  

24 
 

Promotion 
• Highlight and promote walking and cycling as a greener, healthier modes of travel. 

• Promote routes and opportunities for walking and cycling locally. Provide route information and 
wayfinding tools to enable more journeys on foot, by bicycle or using mobility aids. 

• Identify and promote walking and cycling multi-modal journeys for special events and festivals. 

• Deliver special projects to promote walking, cycling and to improve mobility e.g. Whittlesey Heritage 
Walk.  

• Engage with partner organisations to support mobility projects. Highlight and promote good practice 
examples 

• Continue engagement with members of the public and stakeholders regarding walking, cycling and 
mobility aids use in Fenland. Ongoing opportunity for public focused support and responses,  

• Review and update recommended walking, cycling and mobility improvement schemes to ensure these 
best reflect the needs of users and available opportunities. 

• Demonstrate progress and publish updates to the Fenland Cycling, Walking and Mobility Improvement 
Strategy. 

5.4 Strategy Review  

As stated above, this strategy includes ongoing work to progress schemes and projects which will be 
monitored and reported to share progress. This will culminate in annual reports to be provided to FDC 
Cabinet and made available to the public.  

The Fenland Transport and Access Group (TAG) will review progress against the strategy action plan 
quarterly at their Steering Group meetings.  

Version 1 of this strategy was reviewed by public consultation in 2021. The revised document, (Version 2) 
will be submitted to FDC Cabinet in Autumn 2022.  

A further full content review and next phase update will be completed on the strategy in 2032. 
  

Page 45



  

25 
 

6 .  ACTION PLAN & SCHEMES 
The projects and network schemes required to deliver this strategy have been set out in the following 
chapters. 

 

6.1 Action Plan 

A variety of activities are required to fully realise the objectives set out with this strategy. These range from 
influencing wider developments and delivering projects that support and encourage more walking and 
cycling to designing and implementing physical infrastructure improvements. The details of the specific 
activities identified for the delivery of this strategy are set out in Appendix 2 – Strategy Action Plan.  

The Strategy Action Plan includes targets and project milestones set against each item to ensure programme 
delivery and measure progress. Expected completion dates are provided although it is recognised that most 
aspects of each activity are an ongoing requirement if walking and cycling is to become and remain a priority 
for shorter journeys or journey links.  

A comprehensive list of physical interventions has been identified within this strategy. The general delivery 
plan for these schemes is set out under item 2b of the Strategy Action Plan. The remaining chapters within 
this section set out the detail, approach and delivery phases for these schemes.  

 

6.2 Physical Interventions  

Preferred approach for physical improvements 

An obvious barrier to walking, cycling and the use of mobility aids is lack of or low-quality infrastructure. 
Generally, options to improve infrastructure can be wide ranging and varied. However, this does not mean 
that any option is suitable or deliverable. The table below sets out the preferred interventions identified for 
Fenland. This list is based on the general cost and deliverability expectations of options and has been 
informed by responses to the 2021 survey to ensure they have public support:   

Walking & mobility 
scooters (all routes) Cycling School areas 

Provision of dropped kerbs at 
every junction and crossing 
point to enable mobility aid 

use. 

 

Explore potential for segregated 
cycle lanes – providing 

infrastructure separated from road 
and footpath users. 

 

Path widening to accommodate 
high footfall at peak times. 

 

Path widening to 
accommodate increasing 

footfall and enable mobility aid 
use 

 

Explore potential for shared use 
paths – providing safer cycling 
options away from the road. 

 

20mph zones to slow traffic and 
improve safety. 

Revision of junction widths or 
provision of pedestrian refuge 

to aid crossing for all users 

Improve route signage, particularly 
along all NCN routes to promote 

use and improve wayfinding. 

Off road cycle lanes providing safe 
routes to school away from traffic. 

 

Page 46



  

26 
 

  

Provision of controlled 
crossings on busy routes & 

review of crossing timings to 
enable and prioritise crossing 

users. 

Provide safe & convenient cycle 
parking to improve confidence in 

travel by cycling and protect 
property 

Provide on road advisory cycle lanes 
where shared use or segregated 

paths are not possible – raising the 
awareness of other road users. 

 

 

Surface Quality 

Surface quality features highly across all the survey responses and is a regular topic for complaint for all road 
users. Upgrades to routes can resolve issues for an initial period of time, however, long term maintenance 
needs to be factored into each scheme. Opportunities to secure funding, relevant resources and a regular 
programme for the ongoing maintenance of new or improved infrastructure should be carefully considered 
within or alongside any funding bid. This is necessary for all sites regardless of whether they are on the 
public highway or in other ownership. 

 

How each scheme is helping to deliver the strategy. 

Scheme recommendations need to help deliver the overall strategy.  

In order to demonstrate that each project supports the overall strategy, schemes will be categorised based 
on the following: 

 

Route to School Access to 
Employment

Route to 
transport hub 
(bus & train)

Routes likely to 
benefit most 

users

Existing NCN 
routes

Schemes included 
in the LCWIP or 

CCC TIP

Page 47



27 
 

6.3 Recommendations for Chatteris 

The main, or core, route links around Chatteris have been highlighted on the map on the 
right. These routes connect key places of employment, education, healthcare and the 
town centre with residential developments across Chatteris. A route has also been 
highlighted towards Manea as this links to Manea Railway Station (6 miles) and should be 
considered for larger, long-term cycling improvements for multi-modal journeys using 
rail.  

The routes highlighted on the map were audited in 2021 as part of the development of 
this strategy. The results of this audit along with input from the Town Council and 
members of the public through the consultation process have been used to inform the 
improvements recommended. These recommendations have been set out as individual 
schemes for Chatteris. 

Each scheme has been identified for short, medium or long term design and delivery. This 
is based on the size of the project, the expected amount of time each scheme would take 
to deliver and the volume of work that could be realistically completed within each time 
frame. However, it is important to note that individual timeframes for each project may 
change depending on resources and available funding.   

The full list and details of each scheme including delivery phases are set out in Appendix 3 
– Chatteris Schemes. 

Each scheme has been set out as individual projects. Depending on available funding, 
these could be delivered individually or grouped together as packages. This could be 
based on location, linking a range of projects along one section of route or packages could 
be grouped together based on category. Possible categories that could be delivered as 
packages for Chatteris are: 

• The installation of dropped kerbs 
• Junction reviews 
• Pedestrian crossings 
• Missing footpaths 

Grouped schemes or individual projects could also be package with similar or related 
projects identified for other towns or areas of Fenland. The potential for this option has 
been left open within this strategy document. This ensures flexibility to explore a range of large or small funding options as these come forward. 

 

P
age 48



  

28 
 

6.4 March Recommendations 

The March Area Transport Study (MATS) identified six key route corridors across March 
providing main links to employment areas and education. These routes have been 
highlighted on the map on the right. Audits of existing walking and cycling provision along 
each route were undertaken between October and December 2019 as part of this study to 
identify where improvements can be made to facilitate pedestrian and cyclist movement 
and promote sustainable travel options. This work was led by Cambridgeshire County 
Council and the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Combined Authority with support from 
Fenland District Council and delivered by Capita. 

The recommendations from the MATS work have been developed into a programme of 
schemes which are included in Appendix 4 – March Schemes. This sets out the detail of each 
scheme and the delivery expectation for each recommendation. As explained earlier in 
Section 5.2 of this document scheme delivery phases include Scoping and Feasibility, Design 
Work, and Construction.  

The delivery of the MATS schemes identified for March is being progressed by 
Cambridgeshire County Council with funding from the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough 
Combined Authority. Progress on this work will be monitored and supported as part of this 
strategy. 

In addition to the MATS schemes this strategy includes 
proposals to improve the off-road link along Lambs 
Drove to Wimblington. This is a member prioritised 
scheme to create a multi-modal route suitable for all 
users in all weathers. This will require suitable surface 
provision for bicycles or e-bikes whilst retaining 
sufficient portions of softer surfacing needed for 
equestrian use. 

 

 

The full details of the March Area Transport Study including the Walking and Cycling Audit Reports can be viewed online at March 
Transport Study - Cambridgeshire County Council  
  P

age 49

https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/march-transport-study
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/march-transport-study


  

29 
 

6.5 Whittlesey Recommendations 

The main, or core, route links around Whittlesey have been 
highlighted on the map to the right. These routes connect key 
places of employment, education, healthcare and the town 
centre with residential developments across Whittlesey. 
Important links through Whittlesey include the National Cycle 
Network Route 63 and connections to Whittlesea Railway 
Station to the south of town providing important multi-modal 
travel options for longer journeys.  

The routes highlighted were audited in 2021 as part of the 
development of this strategy. The results of this audit along 
with input from the Town Council and members of the public 
through the consultation process have been used to inform the 
improvements recommended in the table below. These have 
been prioritised based on the criteria set out on page 26. 

Each scheme has been identified for short, medium or long 
term design and delivery. This is based on the size of the 
project, the expected amount of time each scheme would take 
to deliver and the volume of work that could be realistically 
completed within each time frame. However, it is important to 
note that individual timeframes for each project may change 
depending on resources and available funding.   

The full list and details of each scheme including delivery phases 
are set out in Appendix 5 – Whittlesey Schemes. 

Each scheme has been set out as individual projects. Depending 
on available funding, these could be delivered individually or 
grouped together as packages. This could be based on location, linking a range of projects along one section of route or packages could be grouped together based on 
category. Possible categories that could be delivered as packages for Whittlesey are: 

• Installation of dropped kerbs 
• Introduction of advisory cycle lanes 
• Junction width reviews 
• New pedestrian crossings 

P
age 50



  

30 
 

• Signage and wayfinding 

Grouped schemes or individual projects could also be package with similar or related projects identified for other towns or areas of Fenland. The potential for this option 
has been left open within this strategy document. This ensures flexibility to explore a range of large or small funding options as these come forward. 

 
6.6 Wisbech Recommendations 

The main, or core, route links around Wisbech have been highlighted on the map on the right. 
These routes connect key places of employment, education, healthcare and the town centre 
with residential developments across Wisbech. Links with the Town Centre, particularly 
Horsefair Bus Station are particularly important for multi-modal journeys. Wisbech also has two 
National Cycle Network routes, NCN 63 and NCN 1. 

The routes highlighted were audited in 2021 as part of the development of this strategy. The 
results of this audit along with input from the Town Council and members of the public through 
the consultation process have been used to inform the improvements recommended in the 
table below. These have been prioritised based on the criteria set out on page 26. 

Each scheme has been identified for short, medium or long term design and delivery. This is 
based on the size of the project, the expected amount of time each scheme would take to 
deliver and the volume of work that could be realistically completed within each time frame. 
However, it is important to note that individual timeframes for each project may change 
depending on resources and available funding.   

The full list and details of each scheme including delivery phases are set out in Appendix 6 – 
Wisbech Schemes. 

Each scheme has been set out as individual projects. Depending on available funding, these 
could be delivered individually or grouped together as packages. This could be based on 
location, linking a range of projects along one section of route or packages could be grouped 
together based on category. Possible categories that could be delivered as packages for 
Wisbech are: 

• Installation of dropped kerbs 
• 20mph school zones 
• Lighting improvements 
• Signage and wayfinding 
• Missing footpaths 

P
age 51



  

31 
 

Grouped schemes or individual projects could also be package with similar or related projects identified for other towns or areas of Fenland. The potential for this option 
has been left open within this strategy document. This ensures flexibility to explore a range of large or small funding options as these come forward. 

 

6.7 Strategic Corridors Between Major Settlements 

This map shows the core routes linking all four Fenland market towns which will also be 
included within this strategy. One route follows the NCN 63 which bisects the district linking 
Whittlesey, March and Wisbech. The second route connects Guyhirn to March with the 
potential to link onwards to Chatteris via the A141 to complete the four town link. 

Schemes to improve the A141 (Guyhirn to Chatteris) off carriageway provision for pedestrians 
and cyclists, and to improve the NCN63 from Whittlesey (and Peterborough) to Wisbech are 
strategic priorities within this strategy, although it is appreciated that these schemes are of such 
a size that they cannot be delivered within a single programme. The initial priorities for this 
strategy will be to focus on:  

(1) Peterborough to Whittlesey (NCN63 & Green Wheel). 
These off-road walking and cycling paths provide significant opportunities for 
commuting between Whittlesey and Peterborough for work and education via bicycle or 
e-bike. Potential for surface improvements, safety cameras and lighting will require 
scoping and feasibility. Due to the length of route this will cover this will be a long term 
scheme.  
 

(2) Peas Hill Roundabout to Mill Hill Roundabout. 
Provision of a safe walking and cycling route linking the north and south of March would 
connect large residential areas along the west of March. It will also support much longer 
commuter or recreational cycling routes between the market towns. This 
recommendation will explore the opportunity to provide new foot and cycle paths 
separated from the busy road using the grass verges. 
 

(3) Whittlesey to March (NCN63). 
This section of the network avoids the busy A605 providing a rural road route linking the 
two towns. This recommendation will explore opportunities for improved signage, 
surface upgrades (dry route section). 

 

P
age 52



32 
 

6.8 Missing footpaths and Member priorities. 

Missing sections of footpath can create major barriers to travel on foot. This is particularly problematic for villages 
where some lack of footpaths can also create safety concerns for the local community. To identify and address this 
across the district a programme of audit work is included in this strategy. A footpath audit will be undertaken for 
each Fenland village. This action is included in the Strategy Action Plan item 2.1. An example of how this approach 
may work are set out in the table below based on a simple alphabetical list of Fenlands villages. The timetable for 
these audits may be subject to change. Where possible this timeframe will brought forward depending on available 
resources. 

 

Village Year Village Year Village Year 

Benwick 1 Four Gotes 5 Parson Drove 9 

Christchurch 1 Friday Bridge 5 Pondersbridge 9 

Coates 2 Gorefield 6 Rings End 10 

Coldham 2 Guyhirn 6 Thorney Toll 10 

Doddington 3 Leverington 7 Turves 11 

Eastrea 3 Manea 7 Tydd St Giles 11 

Elm 4 Murrow 8 Wimblington 12 

Foul Anchor 4 Newton  8 Wisbech St Mary 12 

 

Missing sections of path or route links identified through village audits will be assessed and, where appropriate, 
worked into a scheme packages for feasibility, design and construction works. A contact process will also be 
established to enable residents to report missing footpath links to the FDC Transport Team via email. These reports 
will be reviewed as part of annual audit work. 

Missing footpath provision identified and prioritised by members through the initial strategy development in 2021 
include East Park Street, Church Lane and Doddington Road in Chatteris and along Cromwell Road in Wisbech 
(between the Tesco Supermarket and South Brink).  

In Whittlesey, re-engineering the existing grass verge and footpath on the north side of the A605 between Crossway 
Hand and the Whitmore Street controlled crossing to make an all-weather route for pedestrians, mobility vehicle 
users and, potentially, cyclists is also a member prioritised scheme.  

In March, there is member support for the Lambs Drove to Wimblington route to be prioritised for multi-modal 
active travel 

New sites to be investigated based on public consultation recommendations (2022) include: 

• Mayfield Road junction with Wype Road in Eastrea. 
• March Road, Turves – linking residential properties to the post box, public house and bus shelter. 
• Burnt House Road, Turves – linking residential properties to the post box, public house and bus shelter. 
• Creek Road, March – connecting to level crossing. 
• Hook Lane & Hook Road, Wimblington. 
• Lerowe Road, Wisbech. 

 

Page 53



33 
 

7 .  PROGRESS TRACKING AND 
REPORTING 

A key message within this strategy is that the work identified to take forward is purposefully ambitious. Equally the 
volume of activity needed to realise the strategy vision is large. It is therefore not expected that Fenland District 
Council will deliver this work alone. Local Authorities, Developers and Transport Based Organisations will be able to 
use the content of this document and the recommendations within it to implement schemes or activities directly. It 
is only with this approach that the strategy can be taken forward. Despite this acknowledgement Fenland District 
Council is committed to delivering the actions and activities set out in the Strategy Action Plan (Appendix 2).  

An annual report will record progress against the targets in the action plan which will be reviewed by the Fenland 
Transport and Access Group (TAG). The report will include updates relating to the following items: 

• An annual review of the strategy and schemes,  
• Village audit results,  
• Public engagement and survey results,  
• Progress on the delivery of schemes,  
• Details of funding applied for,  
• Education and training project updates,  
• Details of routes promoted,  
• Options and opportunities identified for mobility aid user improvements,  
• Details of events attended  
• An annual review of travel choice/modal shift data.  

The Fenland Cycling, Walking and Mobility Aid Improvement Strategy Report will be published on the Fenland 
District Council website. 

 

With continued support this approved strategy and action plan will enable Fenland to ensure walking and cycling is 
the first choice for shorter journeys or as part of longer journeys to access employment, education and healthcare. 

 

 
  

Page 54



 

34 
 

APPENDIX 
(These will be links direct to the document once published): 
Appendix 1 - Related Strategies 
Appendix 2 – Action Plan  
Appendix 3 – Chatteris Schemes 
Appendix 4 – March Schemes 
Appendix 5 – Whittlesey Schemes 
Appendix 6 – Wisbech Schemes 

Page 55



  
 

APPENDIX 1  –  RELATED STRATEGIES 

Strategy / Plan Overview Key Points 

National Cycling 
and Walking 
Investment 
Strategy 1 

 

Published 2017 

Strategy level: 
National 

The Government’s first statutory Cycling and Walking Investment 
Strategy was published in April 2017. This details the Government’s 
high-level aspirations for cycling and walking up to 2040 and the 
ambition to make cycling and walking the natural choices for 
shorter journeys, or as part of a longer journey 

Objectives include;  

• increasing cycling activity;  
• increasing walking activity; 
• reducing the rate of cyclists killed or seriously injured on England’s roads; 
• and increasing the percentage of children aged 5 to 10 that usually walk to 

school.  
• Alongside the Strategy, new guidance was published on Local Cycling and 

Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) 

Gear Change: A 
bold vision for 
walking and 
cycling in England 

 

Published 2020 

Strategy level: 
National 

The government has detailed how it will spend £2 billion on 
increasing the numbers of people walking and cycling for travel in 
the strategy Gear change which includes the creation of a new 
body Active Travel England. 

This strategy provides details on the government’s long-term 
manifesto for cycling and walking. 

It will have a key focus on safety by improving cycling lanes and 
offering more training to help both cyclists and pedestrians feel 
safer, so that they’re more likely to choose active forms of travel 
for both leisure, fitness and commuting. 

The investment will also see bikes made available through the NHS, 
with GPs prescribing cycling to people in poor health and making 
bikes available at local surgeries, including e-bikes. 

This document sets out the actions required at all levels of government to make 
the vision a reality, grouped under four themes: 

• better streets for cycling and people 
• cycling and walking at the heart of decision-making 
• empowering and encouraging local authorities 
• enabling people to cycle and protecting them when they do 

Gear Change explicitly states that ‘to receive Government funding for local 
highways investment where the main element is not cycling or walking, there 
will be a presumption that schemes must deliver or improve cycling 
infrastructure to the standards in the Local Transport Note LTN 1/20’. 

 

 

National Cycling 
and Walking 
Investment 
Strategy 2 

 

This is a 4 year plan for investment in walking and cycling following 
on from Strategy 1 published in 2017.  This second statutory 
investment plan is to reflect the changes set out in the Gear 
Change document and is aligned to the multi-year settlement for 
walking and cycling. 

The announcement on the detail of this strategy is expected in Autumn 2021 

P
age 56



  

2 
 

Strategy / Plan Overview Key Points 

Published 2021 

Strategy level: 
National 

Local Transport 
Note – LTN 1/20 
Cycle 
infrastructure 
Design 

 

Published 2020 

Strategy level: 
National 

This LTN provides guidance to local authorities on delivering high 
quality, cycle infrastructure including: 

• planning for cycling 
• space for cycling within highways 
• transitions between carriageways, cycle lanes and cycle tracks 
• junctions and crossings 
• cycle parking and other equipment 
• planning and designing for commercial cycling 
• traffic signs and road markings 
• construction and maintenance 

This document sets out a comprehensive national standard for design of cycle 
infrastructure. 

There are 5 core principles for routes and networks: 

• Coherent 
• Direct 
• Safe 
• Comfortable 
• Attractive 

Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough 
Local Transport 
Plan (LTP) 

 

Published 2020 

Strategy level: 
Local 

The LTP sets an overall strategy of investing in world-class walking 
and cycling facilities which will create sustainable travel 
opportunities, reduce traffic flows and improve air quality through 
encouraging people to walk or cycle rather than drive for shorter 
journeys. It also states the need to ensure that walking and cycling, 
already popular transport modes within certain areas of the 
Combined Authority such as Cambridge, become more widespread 
across the region. 

The LTP will be supported by Local Walking and Cycling 
Infrastructure Plans to ensure that cycling and walking 
infrastructure investment is based on evidence and prioritised for 
greatest impact 

 

 

Included in the Local Transport Plan are the objectives to:  

• Promote social inclusion through the provision of a sustainable transport 
network that is affordable and accessible for all 

• Provide ‘healthy streets’ and high-quality public realm that puts people first 
and promotes active lifestyles  

• The document also includes policies for walking and cycling which aim to:  
• Support an increased number of walking trips by establishing safe, 

interconnected pedestrian connections between key destinations across 
our cities and towns 

• Increase the number of cycling trips through establishing safe and 
interconnected cycling links across the region’s cities, towns and 
settlements  

Cambridgeshire Linked to Gear Change and LTN 1/20 this strategy aims to develop This strategy should make the case for investment in local walking and cycling 

P
age 57



  

3 
 

Strategy / Plan Overview Key Points 
Local Cycling 
Walking 
Investment Plan 

 

Published 2021 

Strategy level: 
Local 

plans for local walking and cycling investment for the long term, 
ideally at least a 10 year period. 

 

 

infrastructure 

CCC Transport 
Investment Plan 

 

Published – Yearly 
updates 

Strategy level: 
Local 

The Transport Investment Plan (TIP) sets out the transport 
infrastructure, services and initiatives that are required to support 
the growth of Cambridgeshire. 

 

The schemes included in the TIP are those that the County Council 
has identified for potential delivery to support growth. These range 
from strategic schemes identified through the County Council’s 
transport strategies, to those required to facilitate the delivery of 
Local Plan development sites for which Section 106 contributions 
will be sought, through to detailed local interventions. 

This plan includes a range of transport schemes within Fenland that require 
investment now or in future. The identified schemes are those that have been 
published in a range of local strategy documents. This is to ensure that any 
investment is in schemes that are supported by stakeholders and the public. 

Fenland Local Plan 
(adopted) 

 

Published 2014 

Strategy level: 
Local 

The Fenland Local Plan sets out the policies and broad locations for 
growth and regeneration in Fenland over a 20 year period.  

The plan sets out a vision for Fenland to grow by 11,000 new 
homes between 2011 and 2031. The vision includes plans for 
increased employment opportunities and a bolstered tourism 
economy with businesses encouraged to expand. Growth in homes 
and jobs to be closely linked to each other with infrastructure such 
as schools, roads, health facilities and open space provision 
planned and provided at the same time as the new buildings. 

Plans for more new homes and increased employment 
opportunities are expected to be included in the emerging Fenland 
Local Plan to 2040. This plan, once adopted, will replace the 

Key policies within the Fenland Local Plan relating to walking and cycling are: 

Policy LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents which 
includes 

• Creating opportunities for employment in accessible locations 
• Promoting and facilitating healthy lifestyles 
• Providing and maintaining effective, sustainable and safe transport 

networks 

Policy LP15 – Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network 
in Fenland. 

• Deliver an integrated approach to transport that is sustainable and 
facilitates growth. 

P
age 58



  

4 
 

Strategy / Plan Overview Key Points 
current Fenland Local Plan, published in 2014. Detail regarding the 
new plan can be found here: Emerging Local Plan - Fenland District 
Council 

 

• Improves accessibility for everyone by all modes of travel. 
• Reduce the distances needed to travel and increase the options available to 

undertake journeys. 
• Deliver robust networks and facilities for walking and cycling. 
• Prioritise schemes which complete gaps in the network, especially those 

that will encourage more local walking and cycling journeys. 

Market Town 
Transport 
Strategies (MTTS) 

 

Published: 

Chatteris (2010) 

March (2013) 

Whittlesey (2012) 

Wisbech (2014) 

 

Fenland Transport 
Strategy 
development– in 
progress. 

Strategy level: 
Local 

The County Council produced area specific transport strategies for 
all of the market towns in Cambridgeshire. Each MTTS sets out a 
five year programme of transport improvements that support the 
Local Transport Plan objectives and contribute towards the 
prosperity and wellbeing of each town. Each MTTS was written in 
partnership with the District Councils. 

The MTTS are gradually being replaced with district wide transport 
strategies that cover both the market towns and rural areas in each 
of the five Cambridgeshire Districts. 

These strategies include programmes of walking and cycling projects that aim 
to address issues on the network and create more integrated networks. 

Any schemes set out in these strategies are typically listed in the CCC Transport 
Investment Plan as projects to be funded in the near future.   

March Area 
Transport Study 
(MATS) 

Work has been conducted through this study to identify highway 
improvements to make travel easier in March by all transport 
modes. It has looked at addressing existing traffic flow problems 
and has developed options to allow for future growth in the area in 

The MATS work included a Pedestrian, Signage and Cycling Strategy for March 
(April 2020).1 

This strategy has 3 area: 

 
1 March Area Transport Study - Pedestrian, Signage and Cycling Strategy (cambridgeshire.gov.uk)  

P
age 59

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/newlocalplan
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/newlocalplan
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/asset-library/March-Area-Transport-Study-Pedestrian-Signage-and-Cycling-Strategy.pdf


  

5 
 

Strategy / Plan Overview Key Points 

 

Published 2013 
and 2020 

Strategy level: 
Local 

line with the Fenland Local Plan. 

A number of the smaller schemes identified through this work have 
now been completed such as two new zebra crossings and 
installation of missing footpaths. 

• Walking and cycling audits 
• Safe routes to school audits 
• Pedestrian and cycle signing audits 

These audits identified a range of interventions to improve walking, cycling and 
wayfinding. These have been included in the recommendations set out within 
strategy. 

Right of Way 
Improvement Plan 
(ROWIP) 

 

Published 2016 

Strategy Level: 
Local 

Wisbech Access 
Strategy - 
Cambridgeshire 
County Council 

The ROWIP is a Cambridgeshire County Council document that sets 
out how they will manage and improve the local rights of way 
network. It is includes a Statement of Action and is part of the Local 
Transport Plan.  

The main objective of the ROWIP is ‘to manage, improve and promote a Public 
Rights of Way network as an integral part of a wider transport system  

• which meets the needs of the whole community for safe sustainable local 
transport,  

• which improves public health,  
• enhances biodiversity,  
• increases recreational opportunities and 
• contributes to the rural economy’. 

Wisbech Access 
Strategy (WAS) 

 

Published 2017 

Strategy level: 
Local 

The Wisbech Access Strategy is a package of individual transport 
schemes that aim to improve the transport network in Wisbech. 
They will also support future housing and job growth as set out in 
the Fenland Local Plan. 

A 3 phase programme (short, medium and long term) has been 
designed to unlock the towns growth potential in line with 
implementation of schemes. 

There are currently three WAS schemes being progressed to detailed design. 
These are road proposals that include walking and cycling components and 
upgrades within them.  

The medium-term schemes include a number of town centre transport projects 
aimed at improving the walking and cycling environment and linking 
infrastructure as part of multi modal journeys. 

P
age 60

https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/wisbech-access-strategy
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/wisbech-access-strategy
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/wisbech-access-strategy
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/wisbech-access-strategy


1 
 

A P P E N D I X  2  –  A C T I O N  P L A N  ( T A R G E T S  &  M E A S U R A B L E S )  

Policy  Action 
What will we do? 

Targets & Measurables 
How will we do this & how will we measure progress? 

Expected 
completion 
Date 

Objective: Place – create the best conditions and infrastructure for walking, cycling and mobility aid across Fenland particularly for access to places of education and 
employment. 

1. Create a high-
level strategy for a 
consistent and 
connected 
network of cycling 
and walking routes 
within each 
Fenland town to 
link residential 
areas with places 
of education and 
employment. 

1.1 Develop an up-to-date and 
supported strategy for walking, 
cycling and mobility aid users 

• Final Strategy adopted by FDC Cabinet 
• Annual review of strategy & schemes 
• Continued public & stakeholder engagement 

Completion 
by 2022 

Ongoing  

1.2 Influence the emerging Fenland 
Local Plan to ensure walking and 
cycling are at the centre of new 
developments 

• Highlight and share the adopted Fenland Cycling, Walking and Mobility Improvement 
Strategy with Planning Policy colleagues developing the Fenland Local Plan.  

• Review draft contents of Fenland Local Plan to ensure synergy with the Fenland Cycling, 
Walking and Mobility Improvement Strategy.  

• The Fenland Cycling, Walking and Mobility Improvement Strategy to be referenced in the 
Fenland Local Plan. The emerging Fenland Local Plan is expected to be finalised & 
adopted by FDC by 2023 

Completion 
by 2023 

2. Develop - 
walking and 
cycling exemplar 
infrastructure 
within our Market 
Towns.  

2.1 Identify gaps in the existing 
network & improvement 
requirements for existing routes. 

• Undertake route audits & review existing schemes 
• Undertake missing footpath audits for each village 
• Undertake public & stakeholder engagement to identify network requirements and 

preferred interventions. By online survey, engagement at events (in partnership with the 
Hereward Community Rail Partnership) and contact with key individuals and groups.  

• Complete 5 route/scheme reviews and audit 2 villages per annum 
• Achieve 100 no. survey responses per annum. 

Ongoing 

P
age 61



2 
 

Policy  Action 
What will we do? 

Targets & Measurables 
How will we do this & how will we measure progress? 

Expected 
completion 
Date 

2.2 Enable, encourage and deliver 
new infrastructure and 
improvements to existing routes 

• Identify, assess and publish recommended schemes. 
• Develop a baseline position and indicative costs to support/source funding for 

recommended schemes.  
• Encourage relevant local authorities and stakeholders to deliver recommended schemes 

where funding available. 
• Explore alternative funding opportunities to deliver schemes.  
• Deliver 50 route improvement schemes by 2037 (approx. 2 per annum) 
• Attend and contribute to 3 strategy engagement events per annum. 

Completion 
by 2021 

Ongoing 

 

 

  

2.3 Improve safety and security for 
pedestrians, cyclist and mobility aid 
users. 

• Review lighting provision, secure cycle parking and suitable access provision as part of 
route audits. 

• Include results in scheme recommendations. 
• Engage with residents and visitors to understand issues and concerns. 
• Establish satisfaction data using online surveys.  
• Recommend and enable 2 safety/security improvements per annum. 
• Achieve 100 no. survey responses per annum. 
• Achieve a 2% increase in satisfaction rates per annum through online surveys. 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

   

2.4 Ensure new and existing 
infrastructure facilitates mobility 
aids users.  

• Encourage feedback from disability organisations to identify and deliver mobility 
improvements.  

• Progress 1no. Mobility enhancement scheme per annum. 
• Engage with 2 (minimum) disability organisations per annum. 

Ongoing  

  

3. Maintain a 
consistent and 
ongoing approach 
to network 
improvements 
relating to walking 
and cycling routes 

3.1 Ensure minimum planning 
requirements for walking, cycling 
and mobility are incorporated in to 
housing developments. Encourage 
enhanced provision where possible. 

• Provide consultation advise to planning applications. 
• Submit consultee comments regarding walking, cycling and mobility to large housing 

applications (over 50 dwellings). 
• Signpost developers, businesses and homeowners to funding opportunities and grant 

providers that help with walking, cycling and mobility improvements.  
• Provide a minimum of 5 consultee responses to planning applications per annum. 
• Share funding & grant opportunities with 10 recipients per annum (when available) 

Ongoing - as 
required 

 

  P
age 62



3 
 

Policy  Action 
What will we do? 

Targets & Measurables 
How will we do this & how will we measure progress? 

Expected 
completion 
Date 

and access to 
places of 
education and 
employment 

3.2 Develop a governance and 
review structure for local transport 
strategies including the Fenland 
Cycling, Walking and Mobility 
Improvement Strategy. 

• Incorporate strategy review to the Transport and Access Group (TAG) remit. Add Fenland 
Cycling, Walking and Mobility Improvement Strategy monitoring to TAG Action Plan & 
Agenda. 

• Submit review amendments to the strategy to FDC Cabinet for approval.  
• Review progress against target delivery quarterly. 
• Review strategy and scheme content annually. 
• Publish strategy report via TAG webpage annually & submit to FDC Cabinet. 

Completion 
by 2022. 
 
Ongoing – 
quarterly  

Objective: People – ensure everyone has access to good quality routes, giving them confidence to make walking and cycling their first choice for local journeys. 

4. Enable – 
Walking and 
Cycling with safety 
and confidence for 
people of all ages 

4.1 Identify, cost and deliver 
education and training projects to 
improve walking, cycling and 
mobility confidence. Include 
opportunities for multi modal 
journey involving bus and rail travel 
to enable a wider reach using 
sustainable travel methods.  

• Secure funding to enable schools to roll out cycling proficiency training across Fenland.  

Delivery of the following TAG projects:  

• Work with the TAG to develop the Transport Champion programme 
• Secure funding, recruit and train Transport Champions for each town. 
• Work up and cost the Travel Buddy programme. 
• Secure funding, recruit and train Travel Buddies for each town.  
• Enable/Support 12 schools to deliver cycle training by 2027 
• Recruit 16 volunteer Transport Champions by 2027 
• Establish Travel Buddy programme by 2027 

Delivery by 
2027 

 

 

 

  

4.2 Identify, promote and deliver 
schemes to support access to 
essential walking, cycling and 
mobility equipment such as bicycles, 
safety wear and mobility aids. 

• Set out proposals and secure funding for equipment grant schemes  
• Deliver grant scheme project by 2030 

Completion 
by 2030 

P
age 63



4 
 

Policy  Action 
What will we do? 

Targets & Measurables 
How will we do this & how will we measure progress? 

Expected 
completion 
Date 

4.3 Identify safety and security 
matters such as theft, antisocial 
behaviour and crime and direct 
these to the relevant authority. 
Highlight and promote infrastructure 
and route improvements to reduce 
issues and improve safety such as 
lighting provision and secure cycle 
parking.  

• Promote highways reporting tool. 
• Work with key partners to deliver community projects 
• Include safety and security improvements in scheme recommendations  
• Include details in annual strategy report 

Ongoing 

  

4.5 Engage with young people to 
promote walking, cycling and multi 
modal journeys. 

• Secure funding for uniformed organisations such as Scouts to complete badges linked to 
travel and community impact. 

• Facilitate multi-mode travel workshops, including bus and rail, with schools and youth 
groups. 

• Engage projects in partnership with the TAG and the Hereward Community Rail 
Partnership.  

• Deliver 5 workshops and 20 badge awards by 2027. 

Completion 
by 2027 

 

 

 

  

5. Facilitate 
opportunities to 
travel and 
demonstrate 
making local 
walking and 
cycling journeys 

5.1 Facilitate integrated transport 
journeys especially to railway and 
bus stations.  

Work the Hereward CRP, Fenland TAG and transport providers to identify and promote 
integrated journeys. 
Support the development of the TAG Travel Buddies project aimed at improving confidence 
and enabling independent, multi modal journeys.  

Promote walking and cycling routes and journeys on social media.  

Promote 5 integrate routes per annum 
Once launched, facilitate 5 supported travel journeys per annum through the TAG Travel 
Buddies programme. 

Ongoing  

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 64



5 
 

Policy  Action 
What will we do? 

Targets & Measurables 
How will we do this & how will we measure progress? 

Expected 
completion 
Date 

6. Encourage 
mobility and 
walking and 
cycling as a first 
choice for local 
journeys. 

6.1 Highlight and promote walking 
and cycling as a greener, healthier 
modes of travel. 

Work with partner groups relating to health, wellbeing and active lifestyles to promote 
walking and cycling as a first choice for local journeys.  

Annual engagement with Everyone Health and Active Fenland to explore opportunities to link 
projects and promotion. 

Ongoing 

 

  

6.2 Engage with disability groups to 
explore options to encourage 
mobility and travel. 

Liaise with Age UK and healthcare providers to discuss options and opportunities specifically 
related to improving provision for mobility aid users.  

Include details in annual strategy review 

Ongoing 

  

Objective: Promotion – demonstrate opportunities for access and mobility demonstrating freedom through local travel 

7. Communication 
through a range of 
mediums and 
media to promote 
routes and 
opportunities for 
local travel. 

7.1 Promote routes and 
opportunities for walking and cycling 
locally. Provide route information 
and wayfinding tools to enable more 
journeys on foot, by bicycle or using 
mobility aids. 

Source funding for the production of walking and cycling maps for each Fenland town. 
Undertake regular review and update of existing maps.  
Develop an annual communications programme for walking and cycling.  

Promote 5 routes per annum on social media. 
Deliver walking & cycling maps for each Fenland town by 2027. 

Ongoing 
 
Completion 
by 2027  

7.2 Identify and promote walking 
and cycling multi-modal journeys for 
special events and festivals. 

Work in partnership with event organisers to promote journey options and deliver travel 
surveys to identify mode choices. 
Use social media to promote local events and relevant methods of travel.  

Enable/deliver travel surveys at 5 local events per annum. 
Publish travel choice data from surveys annually 

Ongoing 

 

  

8. Commission and 
deliver exemplar 
mobility projects 
and good practice 

8.1 Deliver special projects to 
promote walking, cycling and 
mobility e.g. Whittlesey Heritage 
Walk.  

Identify potential projects through stakeholder engagement and partnership liaison.  
Seek funding opportunities and support project delivery.  

Support delivery of 2 mobility projects per annum 
Ongoing  

P
age 65



6 
 

Policy  Action 
What will we do? 

Targets & Measurables 
How will we do this & how will we measure progress? 

Expected 
completion 
Date 

examples         
8.2 Engage with partner 
organisations to support mobility 
projects. Highlight and promote 
good examples 

Liaise with Everyone Health, Active Fenland and disability groups to understand and promote 
existing projects. Provide advice on funding opportunities linked to transport to aid projects.  

Engage annually with identified partner organisations. 
Promote 5 good practice examples per annum. 

Ongoing 

  

9. Evaluate cycling, 
walking & mobility 
aid requirements 
across Fenland 
and evidence 
progress against 
strategy targets. 

9.1 Continue engagement with 
members of the public and 
stakeholders regarding walking, 
cycling and mobility aids use in 
Fenland. Ongoing opportunity for 
public focused support and 
responses,  

Provide and promote regular opportunities to submit views and observations relating to 
walking, cycling and mobility.  

Complete annual online survey & publish results. 
Ongoing  

9.2 Review and update 
recommended walking, cycling and 
mobility improvement schemes to 
ensure these best reflect the needs 
of users and available opportunities. 

Delivery of route review audits.  

Complete annual review of 5 walking & cycling routes. 
Ongoing  

9.3 Demonstrate progress and 
publish updates to the Fenland 
Cycling, Walking and Mobility 
Improvement Strategy. 

Develop an annual report to be made widely available and shared with stakeholders. 
Use DfT, ONS and CCC traffic monitoring data to measure any shift in travel choice.  

Complete annual report 
Ongoing  

 

P
age 66



Appendix 3 - Chatteris Recommendations

Priority Criteria

Scheme ID Town Location Scheme details
Feasibility & 
Scoping

Design 
Priority

Delivery 
Phase

Notes Scheme Type
Route to 
school

Access to 
work

Route to 
Transport 
Hub

Main 
Route 
(most 
users)

NCN 
Route

Scheme in 
TIP or 
LCWIP

C1.1 Chatteris Fenland Way A141
Explore options for widening footpath north 
of travellers site entrance, including options 
for safety barrier provision.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

This is a school route and will become 
increasingly important as developments 
west of A141 are completed. 

Widen 
existing path

X X X

C1.2 Chatteris Fenland Way A141
Install missing footpath between Jacks 
roundabout and travellers site entrance, 
including option safety barrier provision.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

Linked to developer site and scheme 1.1. Missing 
footpath

X X X

C1.3 Chatteris Fenland Way A141

Explore options to improve pedestrian 
crossing of A141/A142 roundabout - 
potential refuge improvement or controlled 
crossing.

Phase 1 Phase 1
Short/Mediu

m Term

This is an important link between the 
town and Doddington Road. It is 
potentially a larger scheme due to the 
A141/A142 roundabout and therefore 
will need significant scoping and design 
work.

Ped crossing

X X

C1.4 Chatteris Fenland Way A141
Explore options for improving pedestrian 
crossing at Stainless Metalcraft.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term 
Ped crossing

X X

C10.1 Chatteris
Huntingdon Road / West 
Park Street / Park Street

Ensure dropped kerb provision on every 
junction and crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term

Dropped kerb provision is essential for 
path users. This should be relatively easy 
to deliver. This is therefore a priority 
scheme.

Drop kerb

X

C11.1 Chatteris New Road
Remove car parking on footpath (particularly 
town end)

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

This links to Scheme C4.1. An intial 
review required to understand the 
extent of this issue, this connects to 
parking provision in town. 

Car Parking

X X X

C11.2 Chatteris New Road Explore options for path widening Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term 
Due to the length of this road it is likely 
to be a medium term project.

Widen 
existing path X X X

C11.3 Chatteris New Road
Ensure dropped kerb provision at all 
junctions and crossing points

Phase 1 N/a Short Term

Dropped kerb provision is essential for 
path users. This should be relatively easy 
to deliver. This is therefore a priority 
scheme.

Drop kerb

X X X

C12.1 Chatteris
Burnsfield Street 
(Kingsfield Primary) / 
Station Street (link path)

Review crossing provision along route to 
school.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

Further work is needed to confirm desire 
lines for this school route. This links with 
recommendations from the 
Cambridgeshire LCWIP.

Ped crossing

X

C13.1 Chatteris
Farriers Gate 
(Glebelands Primary) / 
Saddlers Way

Review & improve wayfinding signage. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
Current provision is low however, this is 
not a priority scheme compared to 
others listed. 

Wayfinding
X

C2.1 Chatteris
Isle of Ely Way A142 (at 
Fenton Way)

Explore options for pedestrian/cycling 
crossing - potential refuge or controlled 
crossing

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term
This is needed longer term as business 
grows north of A141

Ped crossing
X X

Chatteris

P
age 67



Appendix 3 - Chatteris Recommendations

C3.1 Chatteris
Isle of Ely Way A142 (at 
New Road)

3.1  Provide ped/cycle crossing of A142 to 
continue along New Road

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

This is the route to Manea Railway 
Station.
Large and ambitions project that will 
need detailed scoping and feasibility 
work.

Ped crossing

X

C3.2 Chatteris
Isle of Ely Way A142 (at 
New Road)

Install footpath/cycle path from The Pastures 
to A142

Phase 2 Phase 3 Long Term

Linked to scheme 3.1
Required to connect existing path to the 
A141 (to connect to proposed crossing). 

Missing 
footpath

X

C3.3 Chatteris
Isle of Ely Way A142 (at 
New Road)

Complete full audit of route to Manea 
Railway Station to identify improvements to 
develop a commuter route for cyclists. 
Consider/incorporate improvements along 
High Street/Station Road, Manea to aid 
access to school.

Phase 2 Phase 3 Long Term

Linked to scheme 3.1 
This work needs to be scoped at an early 
stage. 

Major 
Scheme

X

C4.1 Chatteris
Bridge Street / High 
Street

Review parking provision on pinch points 
along route

Phase 1 N/a Short Term

A car parking review can be deliverered 
relatively quickly. This would inform 
schemes to enable car parking without 
encrouching or restricting opportunity to 
cycle or use existing footways.

Car Parking

X X X X

C4.2 Chatteris
Bridge Street / High 
Street

Provide safe walking route across Apple 
Petrol Station entrance.

Phase 1 Phase 2
Short/Mediu

m Term

Initial scoping work is needed to 
understand what can be achieved in this 
location. It is hoped any works could be 
delivered as a short term scheme. 
However, this will depend on what is 
needed.

Missing 
footpath

X X X X

C4.3 Chatteris
Bridge Street / High 
Street

Explore footpath widening consistently along 
entire route

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term 
This is linked to scheme 4.1 which will 
need to be competed first.

Widen 
existing path X X X X

C4.4 Chatteris
Bridge Street / High 
Street

Ensure dropped kerb provision at each 
junction and crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term

Dropped kerb provision is essential for 
path users. This should be relatively easy 
to deliver. This is therefore a priority 
scheme.

Drop kerb

X X X X

C4.5 Chatteris
Bridge Street / High 
Street

Review Dock Road junction crossing island - 
ensure dropped kerb provision.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium Term 

Linked to 4.4 - it is expected that 
additional scoping/design work will be 
needed for this location due to the 
width of the junction and existing build 
out.

Junction 
width review

X X X X

C5.1 Chatteris
Wenny Road (Cromwell 
College)

Investigate requirement for provision of 
footpath across Sixth Form access/drop off 
point.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

This is a high footfall route in close 
proximity to Thomas Clarkson Academy 
and is therefore a priority scheme.

Missing 
footpath

X X X

C5.2 Chatteris
Wenny Road (Cromwell 
College)

Explore option for on road advisory cycle 
lanes (particularly in proximity to Cromwell 
Community College)

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term 
Advisory 
Cycle Lanes X X X X

C5.3 Chatteris
Wenny Road (Cromwell 
College)

Investigate options for 20mph school zone. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
Linked to scheme 8.2 (Kingsfield Primary) 20mph 

School
X X X

P
age 68



Appendix 3 - Chatteris Recommendations

C6.1 Chatteris Wenny Rec path
Explore options to split existing path to 
include a segregated cycle path (investigate 
reasons for 'no cycling' signage)

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

It is expected that this should be 
relatively simple to achieve - the path 
width seems sufficient and is already 
used by cyclists. 

New Shared 
Use

X X X

C6.2 Chatteris Wenny Rec path
Provision of solar studs to improve route 
safety during winter months.

Phase 1 Phase 1
Short/Mediu

m Term
This is straight forward however, 
depends on funding. 

Lighting
X X X

C7.1 Chatteris
Market Hill / East Park 
Street

Review and rationalise street furniture Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium Term 

This work will be completed in two 
phases. The Review can be completed in 
the short term, however the delivery is 
likely to take longer (Medium Term).

Miscellaneou
s

X X X X

C7.2 Chatteris
Market Hill / East Park 
Street

Ensure dropped kerb provision at every 
junction and crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term

Dropped kerb provision is essential for 
path users. This should be relatively easy 
to deliver. This is therefore a priority 
scheme.

Drop kerb

X X X X

C7.3 Chatteris
Market Hill / East Park 
Street

Review junction widths to aid crossing (East 
Park Street, Station Road, Huntingdon Road)

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium Term 
Junction 
width review X X X X X

C8.1 Chatteris
Burnsfield Street 
(Kingsfield Primary) / 
Station Street (link path)

Explore options to limit vehicle access to 
Burnsfield Street during peak (school run) 
times.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term 

This scheme is to explore options. It is 
therefore expected that the delivery of 
this intervention would be Medium 
Term.

Miscellaneou
s

X

C8.2 Chatteris
Burnsfield Street 
(Kingsfield Primary) / 
Station Street (link path)

Explore option for 20mph school zone on 
Station Street.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

Linked to 5.3 (Cromwell College) 20mph 
School

X

C8.3 Chatteris
Burnsfield Street 
(Kingsfield Primary) / 
Station Street (link path)

Review crossing provision along route to 
school

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

Improving access to schools is an early 
priority.

Ped crossing

X

C9.1 Chatteris
Short Nightlayers Drove 
/ Dock Road / Fenton 
Way

Provision of footpath on both sides of road 
(Dock Road & Short Nightlayers Drove)

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term 

Ties in to missing footpath priorities - 
scores sllightly lower though as very low 
footfall. May link to scheme 2.1

Missing 
footpath

X X

C9.2 Chatteris
Short Nightlayers Drove 
/ Dock Road / Fenton 
Way

Widen existing footpath using grass verges 
and review lighting provision

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term 
Linked to above - lower priority due to 
footfall.

Widen 
existing path X X

C9.3 Chatteris
Short Nightlayers Drove 
/ Dock Road / Fenton 
Way

Explore potential for introduction of shared 
use on existing path (once widened)

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term 
To be delivered in tandem with scheme 
9.2

New Shared 
Use X X

C9.4 Chatteris
Short Nightlayers Drove 
/ Dock Road / Fenton 
Way

Reduce foliage/overgrowth on byway path. Phase 1 N/a Short Term

This should be a relatively straight 
forward task but should also be 
completed regularly - to be referred to 
Cambridgeshire County Council.

Foliage

X X

P
age 69



Appendix 3 - Chatteris Recommendations

C9.5 Chatteris
Short Nightlayers Drove 
/ Dock Road / Fenton 
Way

Improve surface and widen byway entrance 
on A142

Phase 1 Phase 1
Short/Mediu

m Term

Surfacing works could be achieved 
relatively easiliy. Widening entrance 
could support proposal for a 
walking/cycling crossing at Fenton Way 
(scheme 2.1)

Widen 
existing path 
& Surface 
Improvement
s

X X

P
age 70



No Town Location Scheme details
Feasibilit

y & 
Scoping

Design 
Priority

Delivery 
Phase Scheme details. Scheme Type

Route to 
school

Access to 
work

Route to 
Transport 

Hub

Main 
Route 
(most 
users)

NCN 
Route

Scheme in 
TIP or 
LCWIP

M1 March Robingoodfellows Lane 
(footways)

Revised scheme: Install footway (2m width) along 
Robingoodfellow’s Lane carriageway and maintain 
double yellow lines on left hand side, between junction 
with B1099/Broad Street and Darthill Road car park.. 

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Improve pedestrian accessibility and safety when walking between Darthill Car 
Park and Broad Street, via Robingoodfellow’s Lane. This will create a 
continuous footway to the car park. This will require an RSA, topographic and 
stats surveys.

Missing Footpath X X X

M2 March Robingoodfellows Lane 
(crossing facilities)

Insert ‘Look Right’ and ‘Look Left’ reminder carriageway 
markings for pedestrians crossing Robingoodfellow’s 
Lane at this junction 

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 
Term 

Inserting carriageway markings improves safety awareness for pedestrians 
crossing Robingoodfellow’s Lane at interchange with Station Road and Broad 
Street. This needs to be done as a priority. Longer term, the FHSF/MATS Broad 
St scheme will improve the entry to the Robingoodfellow’s Lane, as part of 
scheme design for the mini roundabout. 

Road Markings X X X

M3 March Nene Parade/ Grays Lane 
(parking)

Review and formalise provision of parking in Nene 
Parade and Grays Lane. Re-line parking bay and yellow 
lines. 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Nene Parade and Grays Lane existing parking provision 
remarking/formalisation to be addressed by Ped/Cycle Feasibility Study.  Broad 
Street carriageway realignment and accompanying carriageway marking 
requirements to be addressed by FHSF and MATS Broad Street schemes. 
Re-line disabled bays. Review provision of double yellow lines down Nene 
Parade to identify extent of relining.

Car Parking X X X

M4 March Elwyn Road/ High Street 
(crossing facilities)

Improve safety of pedestrian crossing facilities across 
Elwyn Road junction with High Street with installation of 
an uncontrolled raised table pedestrian crossing at 
junction, or similar. Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 

Term

Pedestrian crossing facilities need improving at the uncontrolled junction of 
Elwyn Road junction with High Street, for accessing Market Place. Will be 
addressed by Ped/Cycle Feasibility Study as out of the scope of the FHSF 
Market Place proposal. 
The radii of the junction could be tightened and tactile paving could be installed 
here.

Ped Crossing X X X X

M5 March Market Place /High Street 
(crossing facilities)

Provide pedestrian crossing facilities across Market 
Place junction with High Street (B1101). This relates to 
crossing the junction between Market Place car park and 
The Griffin Public House. Install an uncontrolled raised 
entry table pedestrian crossing or similar. Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term

Pedestrian crossing facilities need improving at the uncontrolled junction of 
Market Place and High Street (adjacent to the Griffin pub). Will be addressed 
by Ped/Cycle Feasibility Study as out of the scope of the FHSF Market Place 
proposal.
Check whether Market Place route is used to turn round buses for service 
operations at Broad Street. Could lose a lane and have just one as it is already 
one way. Do we need to retain the dedicated left and right lanes at the end of 
the road? A zebra crossing could also be installed here. Suggested that we 
check the junction modelling.

Ped Crossing X X X X

M6 March High Street (footways) Install a footway on section of High Street (B1101) 
across entrance to Chapel Street shared footpath, to join 
up with the existing pavement on the section of High 
Street from the entrance to Cromwell Hotel to the 
premises occupied by Leonardo’s Pizza. Install dropped 
kerb access for cyclists and mobility scooters on the 
section across the entrance to the Chapel Street foot and 
cycle path. Linked to scheme 7, below. 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Delivery with scheme  7.
Install facility to help cyclists join the carriageway. Check whether the 
provision of a footway would obstruct an access point. Check drainage, 
as it falls away from the carriageway. Also check for stats.

Missing Footpath X X X X

M7 March High Street/ Chapel Street 
(crossing facilities) 

Install pedestrian island refuge on High Street adjacent 
to Chapel Street ped/cycle entrance (south of 
Burrowmoor Road junction) with footway build out. 
Linked to scheme 6, above. Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term

There are no ped crossing facilities on this stretch of road.. Linked to scheme 
8, should be delivered in same phase .
As with scheme 6, check whether the provision of a footway would obstruct an 
access point. A crossing would intersect the shared route. Would have to 
suspend parking to implement this. Potential to remove a parking bay adjacent 
Cassanos to install a build out to help pedestrians cross the road.

Ped Crossing X X X X

M8 March High Street/ The Causeway/ 
The Avenue  (cycling facilities)

Re-line, add cycle symbols and sign shared use footway 
provision. Assume 4km of carriageway/footway to 
reline/sign.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Will require RSA Road Markings X X X X

M9 March Station Road/ Creek Road 
(crossing facilities) 

Improve pedestrian crossing facilities on Station Road by 
Creek Road. The central refuge should be redesigned to 
create a direct crossing facility to serve the high footfall 
of pedestrians accessing Sainsbury’s car park at this 
location. 

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

Addressed by Ped/Cycle Feasibility Study as out of the scope of the FHSF and 
MATS Broad Street scheme proposals

Ped Crossing X X X X

M10 March Station Road (cycle facilities/ 
wayfinding)

Provide a more direct cycle route linking Station Road 
with Neale Wade Academy and south east March, via St. 
John’s Road, Wigstone’s and the footbridge to the south 
of the River Nene. Involves installation of carriage way 
cycle symbols.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

High priority as connected to school travel. 
Requires improved cycle signage and cycle symbol road markings. Requires a 
RSA.

Advisory Cycle 
Lanes

X X X X

March Schemes Priority Criteria

Appendix 4 - March Recommendations

P
age 71



M11 March Elwyn Road (footway No dropped kerb opposite Mortgage Force on river side 
of Elwyn Road – install them. Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term
Requires Stats check. 
A dropped kerb should be installed on the other side.

Drop Kerb X X

M12 March Sconce ped/cycle route (shared 
use)

Repaint cycle symbols on the shared route past March 
Sconce. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 

Term 
High priority as key off road route to Neale Wade Academy. Road Markings X

M13 March Cavalry Drive (crossing 
facilities)

Examine the need for formal crossing facility across 
Cavalry Drive, by the back entrance to Neale-Wade 
Academy and installation of 20 mph wig wags (flashing 
boards) advisory speed limit for start/end of school day.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

School safety related. High priority.
An option study required to consider: A zebra crossing installation (on the 
existing raised table). Tactile paving would need to be installed on both sides. 
Wigwag signs and markings required, to be added to existing ‘hump’ signs. The 
presence of a fence limits visibility here. The speed table requires maintenance. 
Traffic calming features could be considered, such as one way priority for 
traffic. The lanes could be narrowed. A parallel crossing could be installed. Is on 
bus route.

Ped Crossing & 
20ph School

X X

M14 March Chapel Lane (cycle wayfinding) Add cycle symbol on surface through Chapel Street (the 
lane outside the police station). Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 

Term
Requires improved cycle symbol road markings to reduce cycle/pedestrian 
conflict along Chapel Lane shared route. 

Road Markings X X

M15 March Wisbech Road/ Norwood Road 
(crossing facilities)

Improve pedestrian crossing facilities at the junction of 
Wisbech Road and Norwood Road. 

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

No dropped kerbs at junction, outside the Men of March pub and no other ped 
crossing provision in the vicinity. High priority
An options study. Could install a build out for cyclists so that they can avoid / 
bypass the roundabout. There are lots of options available here.. Remove 
columns to facilitate the installation of a zebra crossing or “cyclists dismount” 
style crossing. 

Ped Crossing X X

M16 March Dartford Road (crossing 
facilities)

Install central refuges pedestrian crossing facilities on 
Dartford Road, adjacent to Lidl supermarket. In 
carriageway hatching area before turning lane into 
access road for Lidl. 

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

No other ped provision in the vicinity. High priority.
Scope to install a refuge where the hatching is outside Lidl. Would connect 
West End Park with developments. 

Ped Crossing X X

M17 March Dartford Rd/Westwood Av 
(crossing facilities)

Widen dropped kerb and add tactile paving provision on 
corner of Westwood Avenue/Dartford Road. Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 

Term
High priority as on route to Westwood Primary School Drop Kerb X X X

M18 March Wisbech Road corridor (shared 
use cycle facilities)

Incorporate shared use footway provision for cycling 
along Wisbech Road, providing cyclists with a safe and 
direct route to Tesco and the Industrial Park. Installation 
of advisory cycle lanes, in both directions on existing 
carriage is feasible instead of shared use on footway.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

This is relevant for the Wisbech Road section. Adequate carriageway width to 
accommodate advisory cycle lane on both sides of Wisbech Road. Provision of 
share use footway ruled out due to conflict with parked vehicles, trees and grass 
verges. 
Consider advisory cycle lanes.

Advisory Cycle 
Lanes

X X X

M19 March Wisbech Road/ Elliott Road 
(crossing facilities)

Widen central pedestrian refuge across entrance to Elliot 
Road at junction with Wisbech Road. Install dropped 
kerbs on Elliot Road junction entrance.  Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 

Term

The junction could be ‘tightened up’. Install dropped kerbs. Widen the island. If 
the junction was tightened up an island might not be required. The island should 
be 3m wide.

Ped Crossing X X

M20 March Wisbech Road (crossing 
facilities) 

Upgrade the signalised pedestrian crossing outside 
Wisbech Road Post Office to a toucan crossing as part 
of a shared route scheme, along NCN route. Add shared 
used markings in cut through, opposite Toucan crossing 
(adjacent to Wisbech Road Post Office), to formalise this 
section of NCN route on approach to upgraded Toucan 
crossing

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

This crossing should have tramlines / corduroys either side of the crossing as 
cycles use it and it is part of the NCN. This is feasible.

Ped Crossing X X

M21 March Path leading from park off 
Norwood Road to All Saints 
Close (footway link)

Formalise the muddy track through the field, adjacent to 
All Saints Inter-Church Academy and County Road, 
which is used by parents and schoolchildren. Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term

Formalised informal path through field as well used link for route to school, 
park, and cut through between County Road and Robingoodfellow’s Lane. 
Norwood Road and station. 
Consider solar floor lighting, like has been installed in other section of path 
between Robingoodfellow’s Lane and March Railway Station. 

Missing Footpath X

M22 March All Saints Close (safer routes to 
school)

Examine the need for a pedestrian central refuge 
crossing facilities on County Road, between junction of 
All Saints Close and Cromwell Road

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

High priority since connected to school travel.
Requires site visit with Highways Engineer to establish if suitable carriageway 
space. 
Option study. RSA needed for traffic calming. A ‘bolt down’ / raised table could 
be installed here. It would need to be six metres. Noted that it is on a bus route.

Ped Crossing X

M23 March All Saints Close (safer routes to 
school)

Relining of no parking restrictions road markings outside 
school. Requires zig zags markings from zebra crossing. 
Currently missing/worn away. 

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 
Term 

High priority since connected to school travel safety. 
Zig zags at the zebra crossing need to be re-lined.

Road Markings X

M24 March Westwood Primary (safer 
routes to school)

Relining of no parking restrictions road markings outside 
school. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 

Term 
High priority as connected to school travel and still enforcement need..  Road Markings X

Appendix 4 - March Recommendations

P
age 72



M25 March Burrowmoor Road (Safer 
Routes to School)

Investigate options for installing a pedestrian crossing 
facility on Burrowmoor Road within proximity to the 
school. Recommend installation of raised table outside 
No. 19. This will provide traffic calming and will facilitate 
safer ped crossing. This facility can then be used as 
crossing location used by crossing attendant. 

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

High priority since connected to school travel safety. 
Liaised with school’s crossing attendant (during PM pick up on 11th Nov) who 
confirmed need for traffic calming to improve safety of crossing facilities as 
children/parent face daily safety issues crossing Burrowmoor Rd outside school 
due to parents illegal parking, which is daily issue, and worse during PM pick 
up. Recommend raised table adjacent to no/and associated markings to slow 
traffic outside school, which can be used by crossing attendant. 

Ped Crossing & 
Traffic Calming

X X

M26 March Burrowmoor Road (Safer 
Routes to School)

Relining of no parking restrictions road markings outside 
school. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 

Term 
High priority since connected to school travel. Road Markings X X X

M27 March Town wide ped/cycle  
wayfinding

Identify wayfinding signage improvements, providing 
distance to key destinations, including March Railway 
Station, the town centre, Neale-Wade Academy and 
other key destinations.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 
Term 

Wayfinding to be considered as part of March wide signage strategy based on 
key decision points.

Wayfinding X X X X X

M28 March NCN 63 route  signage Improve NCN 63 routing signage/markings which are 
currently inconsistent and fragmented through March. 
Include shared use markings in cut through opposite 
Wisbech Road Post Office. This section of NCN route 
should be formalised.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 
Term 

NCN 63 route signage/markings are identified separately to ped/cycle 
wayfinding improvements as requires consultation with Sustrans. 

NCN Signage X X

M29 March Lambs Drove Explore surface and lighting improvements to create an 
all weather all users route linking to Wimblington Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term
Shared Use Path X

Appendix 4 - March Recommendations

P
age 73



Priority Criteria

Scheme 
ID

Town Location Scheme details
Feasibility 
& Scoping

Design 
Priority

Delivery / 
Construction

notes. Scheme type
Route to 
school

Access to 
work

Route to 
Transport 
Hub

Main 
Route 
(most 
users)

NCN 
Route

Scheme in 
TIP or 
LCWIP

Wh1.1 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road
Explore options to reduce traffic speeds, 
including 20mph zones and safety cameras.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
Traffic Calming X X

Wh1.2 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road
Ensure dropped kerb provision on every 
junction

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X

Wh1.3 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road Reduce foliage overhanging paths Phase 1 N/a Short Term
This should be straight forward to achieve - refer to ccc. Foliage X X

Wh1.4 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road Review & improve NCN signage Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

NCN is a priority.
This can be part of a signage package for the entire 
route (including schemes for March & Wisbech).
Linked to schemes 3.2 & 9.2

NCN Signage X X

Wh1.5 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road Explore options for on road cycle lanes Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation. Links to scheme 1.1

Advisory Cycle 
Lanes

X X

Wh1.6 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road
Review junction widths at Northgate, Low 
Cross and opposite 187 Stonald Road to aid 
ped crossing

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Junction width 
review

X X

Wh1.7 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road
Explore options to increase pedestrian 
waiting area on all 4 arms of T junction with 
Bassenhally Road, Delph & East Delph

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Ped crossing 
(adjustment)

X X

Wh1.8 Whittlesey NCN63 Stonald Road
Review pedestrian waiting and green man 
times.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term

This could be achieved quickly if funding available. Ped crossing 
(wait times)

X X

Wh10.1 Whittlesey Station Road (NCN63)
Ensure dropped kerb provision at each 
junction and crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X X

Wh10.2 Whittlesey Station Road (NCN63)
Explore options to adjust junction width or 
provide refuge at Inhams Road and Aliwal 
Road

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term
This is a larger scheme and therefore likely to be 
delivered Medium Term. However scoping and feasiblity 
is an earlier priority

Junction width 
review

X X X X

Wh10.3 Whittlesey Station Road (NCN63)
Widen footpath where possible using 
available verge space.

Phase 2 Phase 3 Long Term
There is limited verge space on this route and therefore 
this is likely to be a long term project due to known 
constraints.

Widen existing 
path

X X X X

Wh2.1 Whittlesey
Plough Road / Hallcroft 
Road / Park Lane (Park Lane 
Primary)

Explore option for cycle lane contraflow on 
Plough Road one way section - possible 
widening of footpath to provide section of 
dual use path linking to controlled crossing 
on A605

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Widen existing 
path

X X

Wh2.2 Whittlesey
Plough Road / Hallcroft 
Road / Park Lane (Park Lane 
Primary)

Ensure dropped kerb provision on each 
junction and crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X

Wh2.3 Whittlesey
Plough Road / Hallcroft 
Road / Park Lane (Park Lane 
Primary)

Review junction width and island refuge 
provision at Hallcroft Road/A605 junction.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Junction width 
review

X X

Wh2.4 Whittlesey
Plough Road / Hallcroft 
Road / Park Lane (Park Lane 
Primary)

Explore options to widen footpath along 
route where possible using existing verges.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
Widen existing 
path

X X

Whittlesey

Appendix 5 - Whittlesey Recommendations

P
age 74



Wh2.5 Whittlesey
Plough Road / Hallcroft 
Road / Park Lane (Park Lane 
Primary)

Explore options for 20mph school zone (Park 
Lane)

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
Safer routes to school option - Speed limit package 
linked to scheme 9.7

20mph school X X

Wh3.1 Whittlesey
NCN63 Windmill Street / 
Gracious Street / High 
Causeway

Review & improve NCN signage Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
NCN signage package linked to scheme 1.4 & 9.2. NCN Signage X X X

Wh3.2 Whittlesey
NCN63 Windmill Street / 
Gracious Street / High 
Causeway

Ensure dropped kerb provision on every 
junction and crossing point

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X

Wh3.3 Whittlesey
NCN63 Windmill Street / 
Gracious Street / High 
Causeway

Review issue of parked cars blocking 
footpaths

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
Should this be tied to CPE? What date is that expected 
to come forward? Assume Medium Term for time being.

Car Parking X X X

Wh3.4 Whittlesey
NCN63 Windmill Street / 
Gracious Street / High 
Causeway

Explore provision of on road advisory cycle 
lanes

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
Initial review is needed to first understand the extent of 
work this will require and to confirm support remains 
for this type of intervention.

Advisory Cycle 
Lanes

X X X

Wh3.5 Whittlesey
NCN63 Windmill Street / 
Gracious Street / High 
Causeway

Review junction of Gracious Street/Orchard 
Street - potential to adjust width or provide 
refuge to aid crossing. Consider/improve 
cycle access to Toucan crossing.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Junction width 
review

X X X

Wh3.6 Whittlesey
NCN63 Windmill Street / 
Gracious Street / High 
Causeway

Explore potential to provide section of dual 
use path at A605 to link to existing 
controlled crossing. Upgrade crossing to 
Toucan.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

New Shared Use X X X

Wh3.7 Whittlesey
NCN63 Windmill Street / 
Gracious Street / High 
Causeway

Explore options for cycle lane along 
pedestrian section of High Causeway linking 
to Station Road. Explore potential to 
upgrade zebra crossing to Station Road for 
cyclist use.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

New Shared Use X X X

Wh4.1 Whittlesey
Eastrea Road (Sir Harry 
Smith College)

Explore options for widening path for dual 
use using existing footpath

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation. Expected to be a large scheme.

Widen existing 
path

X X X X X

Wh4.2 Whittlesey
Eastrea Road (Sir Harry 
Smith College)

Ensure dropped kerb provision on every 
junction

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X X X

Wh4.3 Whittlesey
Eastrea Road (Sir Harry 
Smith College)

Reduce ped crossing distances on junctions 
where possible

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Junction width 
review

X X X X X

wh4.4 Whittlesey
Eastrea Road (Sir Harry 
Smith College)

Explore option for additional A605 ped 
crossing east of Sir Harry Smith Community 
College

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term

This is a priority linked to housing developments 
underway to the east of Whittlesey. Opportunity for 
S106 funding is required. Unless this is included within 
the current construction works taking place it is likely to 
take longer to achieve.

Ped crossing 
(new)

X X X X X

Wh5.1 Whittlesey Church Street / Barr Street
Ensure dropped kerb provision at each 
junction and crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X

Wh5.2 Whittlesey Church Street / Barr Street
Upgrade uncontrolled crossing on Church 
Street

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term

This a route to school and therefore a priority. However, 
due to cost involved and the location it is unlikely to 
come forward quickly.

Ped crossing 
(new)

X X

Wh6.1 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Explore potential for traffic calming on 
Bassenhally Road

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Traffic Calming X

Appendix 5 - Whittlesey Recommendations

P
age 75



Wh6.2 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Ensure dropped kerb provision on every 
junction

Phase 1 N/a Short Term

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X

Wh6.3 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Explore advisory on road cycle lanes or 
opportunity to widen path for duel use

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Advisory Cycle 
Lanes & Path 
Widening & New 
Shared Use

X

X

Wh6.4 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Widen footpath in front of Aldermans 
Primary school.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Widen existing 
path

X

Wh6.5 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Explore options for on road advisory cycle 
lanes

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

This should be relatively straight forward to achieve. Advisory Cycle 
Lanes

X X

Wh6.6 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Explore options to widen footpath on 
Coronation Avenue - investigate potential 
for duel use path

Phase 2 Phase 3 Long Term

Duel use paths will take longer to deliver, however, 
scoping and design work will need to be started in the 
short to medium term.

Widen existing 
path

X X

Wh6.7 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Review Coronation Road/Victory Avenue 
junction to improve ped crossing.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term

This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Junction width 
review

X X

Wh6.8 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Reduce foliage encroaching on paths Phase 1 N/a Short Term

This should be straight forward to achieve - refer to ccc. Foliage X

Wh6.9 Whittlesey
Bassenhally Road / Drybread 
Road (Aldermans Primary) / 
Coronation Avenue

Review junction at Coronation 
Road/Drybread road and Coronation 
Road/A605 to improve ped crossing.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Junction width 
review

X

Wh7.1 Whittlesey Market Street
Explore option for on road advisory cycle 
lanes

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
This should be reasonably straight forward to achieve if 
this type of intervention is supported.

Advisory Cycle 
Lanes

X

Wh7.2 Whittlesey Market Street
Ensure dropped kerb provision at every 
junction and crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X

Wh8.1 Whittlesey
Hawthorn Drive / Marne 
Road

Improve wayfinding signage to Railway 
Station

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
This should be straight forward to achieve -  linked to 
Hereward CRP and Whittlesey Heritage Walk

Wayfinding X X X

Wh8.2 Whittlesey
Hawthorn Drive / Marne 
Road

Upgrade link paths for dual use Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

New Shared Use X X X

Wh8.3 Whittlesey
Hawthorn Drive / Marne 
Road

Ensure dropped kerb provision on every 
junction & crossing point

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X

Wh9.1 Whittlesey
NCN 63 Inhams Road / New 
Road (New Road Primary)

Explore options to widen footpath – 
particularly outside school.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium Term
This will require scoping work and some further 
consultation.

Widen existing 
path

X X X

Wh9.2 Whittlesey
NCN 63 Inhams Road / New 
Road (New Road Primary)

Explore options for on road cycle lanes. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
If supported could package up the on road advisory 
markings?

Advisory Cycle 
Lanes

X X X

Appendix 5 - Whittlesey Recommendations

P
age 76



Wh9.3 Whittlesey
NCN 63 Inhams Road / New 
Road (New Road Primary)

Review & improve NCN signage. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

NCN is a priority.
This can be part of a signage package for the entire 
route (including schemes for March & Wisbech). Linked 
to scheme 

NCN Signage X X X

Wh9.4 Whittlesey
NCN 63 Inhams Road / New 
Road (New Road Primary)

Review & improve school approach signage. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
This should be straight forward to deliver but not a 
priority scheme

Wayfinding X X X

Wh9.5 Whittlesey
NCN 63 Inhams Road / New 
Road (New Road Primary)

Ensure dropped kerb provision on every 
junction & crossing point.

Phase 1 N/a Short Term
Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. This 
should be relatively easy to deliver. This is therefore a 
priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X

Wh9.6 Whittlesey
NCN 63 Inhams Road / New 
Road (New Road Primary)

Review crossing facilities to access New 
Road Primary school

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium Term
Delivery is likely to Medium Term. However, scoping & 
feasibility is an earlier priority

Ped crossing 
(new)

X X X

Wh9.7 Whittlesey
NCN 63 Inhams Road / New 
Road (New Road Primary)

Explore options for 20mph school zone and 
safety cameras

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
Speed limit package linked to 2.5 20mph school X X X

Appendix 5 - Whittlesey Recommendations

P
age 77



Priority Criteria

Scheme 
ID

Town Location Scheme details
Scoping & 
Feasibility

Design 
Priority

Delivery / 
Construction

Notes Scheme Type
Route to 
school

Access to 
work

Route to 
Transport 
Hub

Main 
Route 
(most 
users)

NCN 
Route

Scheme in 
TIP or 
LCWIP

Wi7.3 Wisbech
NCN63 Beechwood Road / St 
Michaels Avenue (Orchards 
Primary) / Bath Road

7.3  Explore potential for 20mph school 
zone (Orchards Primary) Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

20mph school zone package 20mph school X X

Wi10.1 Wisbech
Leverington Road (Peckover 
School) / Chapel Road path 
link

10.1  Explore 20mph school zone 
outside Peckover School Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

20mph school zone package 20mph school X X

Wi12.1 Wisbech Chapel Road / North Brink 
(Wisbech Grammar)

12.1  Explore potential for 20mph school 
zone Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 20mph school zone package 20mph school X X

Wi13.2 Wisbech
NCN63 Church Terrace / 
West Street / Elm Road (Elm 
School) / Elm Low Road

13.2  Explore options for 20mph school 
zone at Elm School including along West 
Street.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

20mph school zone package 20mph school X X X

Wi14.4 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.4  Explore potential for 20mph school 
zone on Ramnoth Road Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 20mph school zone package 20mph school X X X X

Wi5.9 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.9  Explore potential for on road 
advisory cycle lanes Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

This should be relatively straight forward to deliver 
depending on continued support for this intervention

Advisory cycle 
lanes

X X X

Wi16.2 Wisbech Money Bank / Quaker Lane / M 16.2  Review potential for on road 
advisory cycle lanes on Money Bank Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term Delivery of this work would be dependent on 

support for this type of intervention.
Advisory cycle 
lanes

X

Wi11.1 Wisbech
Horsefair / Freedom Bridge / 
Nene Parade / Osborne Road 
/ Mount Pleasant Road

11.1  Review parking provision & HCV 
park/waiting area to reduce on street 
parking or parking on footpath on Nene 
Parade (port area)

Phase 2 Phase 2 Short Term 

This should be explored in tandem with 11.2. Car Parking X X X

Wi14.1 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.1  Review controlled crossing timings 
on Churchill Road to reduce wait times 
for pedestrians & cyclists (Elm Road, 
Norwich Road, Falcon Road) and 
remove vegetation overhanging footpath

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

This should be relatively straight forward to deliver. Crossing 
timings

X X X X

Wi2.1 Wisbech Coalwharf / Queens Road / 
Post Office Lane

2.1  Explore options for secure cycle 
parking (cycle pods) Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term Cycle parking package Cycle parking X

Wi3.2 Wisbech
NCN63 Town Bridge / Bridge 
Street / High Street / Market 
Place

3.2  Explore options of for secure cycle 
parking (cycle pods) Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Cycle parking package. Some work is already 
underway through CCC (Claire Rankin).

Cycle parking X

Wi10.5 Wisbech
Leverington Road (Peckover 
School) / Chapel Road path 
link

10.5  Explore potential for secure cycle 
parking provision (possible cycle pods) Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Cycle parking package Cycle parking X X

Wi11.7 Wisbech
Horsefair / Freedom Bridge / 
Nene Parade / Osborne Road 
/ Mount Pleasant Road

11.7  Explore options for secure cycle 
parking (potential cycle pods) Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Cycle parking package Cycle parking X X X

Wi1.4 Wisbech Weasenham Lane 1.4 Ensure all junctions include dropped 
kerbs Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X

Wi5.4 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.4  Ensure dropped kerbs at required 
access points Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X

Wisbech

Appendix 6 - Wisbech Recommendations

P
age 78



Wi7.2 Wisbech
NCN63 Beechwood Road / St 
Michaels Avenue (Orchards 
Primary) / Bath Road

7.2  Ensure dropped kerbs provision at 
every junction & crossing point Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X

Wi9.3 Wisbech NCN63 Old Market Place / 
Chapel Road / Harecroft Road

9.3  Ensure dropped kerb provision on 
each junction and crossing point Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X

Wi13.4 Wisbech
NCN63 Church Terrace / 
West Street / Elm Road (Elm 
School) / Elm Low Road

13.4  Ensure dropped kerb provision on 
every junction & crossing point. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X X

Wi15.3 Wisbech Norwich Road 15.3  Ensure dropped kerb provision at 
every junction & crossing point Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X

Wi16.3 Wisbech Money Bank / Quaker Lane / M   16.3  Ensure provision of dropped kerbs 
at every junction & crossing point. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X

Wi17.3 Wisbech Lynn Road 17.3  Ensure dropped kerb provision at 
every junction and crossing point. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X

Wi18.7 Wisbech Cromwell Road 18.7  Ensure dropped kerb provision at 
every junction. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Dropped kerb provision is essential for path users. 
This should be relatively easy to deliver. This is 
therefore a priority scheme.

Drop Kerb X X

Wi15.1 Wisbech Norwich Road
15.1  Extend shared use path along 
Norwich Road from Clarkson Avenue to 
Ramnoth Road.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term 

Due to the scale of the works needed here this will 
be a longer term project.

Extend Shared 
Use

X X

Wi5.7 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.7  Reduce foliage overhanging 
footpath Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

This should be straight forward to delivery - refer to 
Cambridgeshire County Council.

Foliage X X X

Wi13.5 Wisbech
NCN63 Church Terrace / 
West Street / Elm Road (Elm 
School) / Elm Low Road

13.5  Reduce vegetation overhanging 
footpath. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

This should be straight forward to delivery - refer to 
Cambridgeshire County Council.

Foliage X X X

Wi15.4 Wisbech Norwich Road 15.4  Reduce foliage/growth blocking 
path Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term This should be straight forward to delivery - refer to 

Cambridgeshire County Council.
Foliage X X

Wi16.4 Wisbech Money Bank / Quaker Lane / M   16.4  Reduce vegetation overhanging 
footpath Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term This should be straight forward to delivery - refer to 

Cambridgeshire County Council.
Foliage X

Wi17.2 Wisbech Lynn Road 17.2  Reduce vegetation overhanging 
footpath Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term This should be straight forward to delivery - refer to 

Cambridgeshire County Council.
Foliage X X

Wi14.6 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.6  Formalise cut through path to 
Elizabeth Terrace (opposite Money Bank 
junction.)

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short/Mediu
m Term

This may require extra time depending on whether 
interventions are required such as surface/lighting 
improvements. 

Formalise 
Shared Use

X X X X

Wi9.4 Wisbech NCN63 Old Market Place / 
Chapel Road / Harecroft Road

9.4  Explore opportunity to reduce 
junction width or provide ped island on 
Pickards Way and Summerfield Close

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 
Term 

This will require scoping work to determine what 
can be achieved.

Junction width 
review

X X X

Wi12.2 Wisbech Chapel Road / North Brink 
(Wisbech Grammar)

12.2  Reconfigure North Brink/Harecroft 
Road junction to aid pedestrian crossing Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

Due to the scale of the works needed here this will 
be a longer term project.

Junction width 
review

X X

Wi5.6 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.6  Review lighting on link path to Lynn 
Road- review potential for solar studs Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Lighting package? Lighting X X X

Appendix 6 - Wisbech Recommendations

P
age 79



Wi8.4 Wisbech
NCN63 Sybil Road / Eastfield 
Way (path link) / Dehavilland 
Road / St Augustine Road

8.4  Review street lighting provision on 
path link Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

Lighting package? Lighting X

Wi14.5 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.5  Review lighting provision on 
Elizabeth Terrace and wayfinding 
signage.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 
Lighting package? Lighting X X X X

Wi9.7 Wisbech NCN63 Old Market Place / 
Chapel Road / Harecroft Road

9.7  Provide safe pedestrian route 
through Chapel Road car park Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 

Term 

Scoping is needed to understand the extent of work 
needed to achieve this.

Miscelaneous X X X

Wi10.4 Wisbech
Leverington Road (Peckover 
School) / Chapel Road path 
link

10.4  Provide clear pedestrian access 
through Chapel Road car park to 
footpath link to Leverington Road

N/a N/a Complete

Strategy Update 2022: This work has now been 
completed.

Miscelaneous X X

Wi1.3 Wisbech Weasenham Lane 1.3 Provide clear shared path access 
across entrance to Lamb Western Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 

Term 

Scoping is needed to determine whether a new 
footpath should be instaled or if surface markings 
would be suffienct. Assume Medium Term in case 
of former. Design work required at an earlier stage.

Missing path X X X

Wi5.8 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.8  Explore potential to add in missing 
footpath on Trafford Road Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term 

Missing footpath Missing path X X X

Wi9.5 Wisbech NCN63 Old Market Place / 
Chapel Road / Harecroft Road

9.5  Provide clear pedestrian route along 
frontage of Dawbarn & Sons Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 

Term 

The principles of this scheme are the same as 1.3. 
Therefore the work here should be done in tandem 
to pool resources.

Missing path X X X

Wi11.2 Wisbech
Horsefair / Freedom Bridge / 
Nene Parade / Osborne Road 
/ Mount Pleasant Road

11.2  Review footpath provision on Nene 
Parade (port area) Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 

Term 

Due to the level of work that may be needed this 
has been identified for the medium term

Missing path X X X

Wi18.2 Wisbech Cromwell Road 18.2  Install missing section of path 
between Lidl and Tesco/Cinema. Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

Missing footpath - based on previous attempts to 
explore this option it is expected that this scheme 
will require longer to deliver (linked to scheme 18.3)

Missing path X X

Wi18.3 Wisbech Cromwell Road
18.3  Install missing path from South 
Brink junction to bus stop (Malt Drive) 
and across to KFC.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term
Missing footpath - as above (linked to scheme 18.2) Missing path X X

Wi3.1 Wisbech
NCN63 Town Bridge / Bridge 
Street / High Street / Market 
Place

3.1  Review & improve NCN signage Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 
NCN Signage package NCN Signage X

Wi4.2 Wisbech
NCN63 Little Church Street / 
Pasimitymas / Whitby Street / 
Town Park

4.2  Review & improve NCN signage Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 
NCN Signage package NCN Signage X

Wi5.1 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.1  Review NCN signage & improve 
where necessary Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

NCN Signage package NCN Signage X X X

Wi6.1 Wisbech
NCN63 Kooremann Avenue 
(path link) / Prins Avenue / 
Waterlees Road

6.1  Review NCN signage & improve 
where necessary Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

NCN Signage package NCN Signage X

Wi7.1 Wisbech
NCN63 Beechwood Road / St 
Michaels Avenue (Orchards 
Primary) / Bath Road

7.1  Review NCN signage & improve 
where necessary Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term 

ncn Signage package NCN Signage X X

Appendix 6 - Wisbech Recommendations

P
age 80



Wi8.1 Wisbech
NCN63 Sybil Road / Eastfield 
Way (path link) / Dehavilland 
Road / St Augustine Road

8.1  Review NCN signage & improve 
where necessary Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

NCN Signage package NCN Signage X

Wi9.1 Wisbech NCN63 Old Market Place / 
Chapel Road / Harecroft Road

9.1  Review NCN signage & improve 
where necessary Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

NCN Signage package NCN Signage X X X

Wi13.1 Wisbech
NCN63 Church Terrace / 
West Street / Elm Road (Elm 
School) / Elm Low Road

13.1  Review NCN signage & improve 
where required Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

NCN Signage package NCN Signage X X X

Wi11.4 Wisbech
Horsefair / Freedom Bridge / 
Nene Parade / Osborne Road 
/ Mount Pleasant Road

11.4  Provide contraflow cycle lane on 
Nene Parade & formalise path to shared 
use up to Boat House

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Due to link with Freedom bridge this is likely to be a 
more complex project.

New cycle lane 
& formalise 
shared use

X X X

Wi13.3 Wisbech
NCN63 Church Terrace / 
West Street / Elm Road (Elm 
School) / Elm Low Road

13.3  Install segregated cycle lanes on 
Elm Road on Churchill Road side 
(reducing road width)

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

Due to the scale of the works needed here this will 
be a longer term project.

New Cycle 
Lanes

X X X

Wi5.3 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.3  Explore potential for shared use 
path along Tavistock Road Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 

Term

Scoping is needed to understand the extent of work 
needed to achieve this.

New shared 
use

X X X

Wi9.2 Wisbech NCN63 Old Market Place / 
Chapel Road / Harecroft Road

9.2  Explore provision of shared use path 
along eastern side of Harecroft Road Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

This may require some space from the road - as 
this is very wide it is not expected to be an issue. 
However this is a potentially a larger scheme.

New shared 
use

X X X

Wi11.3 Wisbech
Horsefair / Freedom Bridge / 
Nene Parade / Osborne Road 
/ Mount Pleasant Road

11.3  Explore options for provision of 
shared use paths on Mount Pleasant 
Road and Nene Parade

Phase 2 Phase 2 Short Term

Due to the length of road this would be a major 
scheme.

New shared 
use

X X X

Wi13.7 Wisbech
NCN63 Church Terrace / 
West Street / Elm Road (Elm 
School) / Elm Low Road

13.7  Install dual use path on east side of 
Elm Road to link to access to Thomas 
Clarkson.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

Due to the scale of the works needed here this will 
be a longer term project.

New shared 
use

X X X

Wi9.6 Wisbech NCN63 Old Market Place / 
Chapel Road / Harecroft Road

9.6  Improve link path signage (from 
Chapel Road car park) & review lighting. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

signage package & lighting package Path signage & 
lighting

X X X

Wi8.2 Wisbech
NCN63 Sybil Road / Eastfield 
Way (path link) / Dehavilland 
Road / St Augustine Road

8.2  Improve path surfaces Phase 1 Phase 1 Short/Mediu
m Term

The delivery of this will depend whether straight 
forward resurfacing is required or surface upgrades.

Path Surfaces X

Wi8.3 Wisbech
NCN63 Sybil Road / Eastfield 
Way (path link) / Dehavilland 
Road / St Augustine Road

8.3  Explore options for path widening on 
Dehavilland Road Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

This scheme may be complex Path widening X

Wi10.2 Wisbech
Leverington Road (Peckover 
School) / Chapel Road path 
link

10.2  Explore options to widen 
Leverington Road footpath in proximity 
to Peckover School

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term
Footpath widening is expected to be slightly more 
complex and therefore a longer term scheme.

Path widening X X

Wi12.4 Wisbech Chapel Road / North Brink 
(Wisbech Grammar)

12.4  Review footpath provision on 
Chapel Road - particularly narrow 
section.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

As above - linked to scheme 12.2 Path widening X X

Appendix 6 - Wisbech Recommendations

P
age 81



Wi14.3 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.3  Continue shared use path from 
Churchill Road link along Ramnoth Road 
towards CWA & Ramnoth Primary 
(widen path using grass verge)

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Ideally this would be delivered earlier, however due 
to the scale of works expected this will take longer.

Path widening X X X X

Wi12.3 Wisbech Chapel Road / North Brink 
(Wisbech Grammar)

12.3  Review crossing point/desire lines 
from Chapel Road car park - potential 
footpath extension link to North Brink

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Interventions in this location need to be tied to 
scheme 12.2

Ped crossing X X

Wi13.6 Wisbech
NCN63 Church Terrace / 
West Street / Elm Road (Elm 
School) / Elm Low Road

13.6  Review potential for ped/cycle 
crossing to link with Churchill Road 
controlled crossing with access to 
Thomas Clarkson Academy.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 
Term

Upgrade crossing to a Toucan? Link to scheme 
13.7

Ped crossing X X X

Wi14.8 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.8  Pedestrian crossing provision on 
Money Bank junction Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 

Term
Due to the scale of the works needed here this will 
be a longer term project.

Ped crossing X X X X

Wi15.2 Wisbech Norwich Road 15.2  Review pedestrian crossing 
provision on Norwich Road Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term Review work can be completed relatively quickly. 

Resulting schemes will take longer.
Ped crossing X X

Wi17.4 Wisbech Lynn Road 17.4  Review crossing provision or 
requirement for additional refuge islands. Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 

Term

Due to the length of road this scheme covers this 
will be a longer term project.

Ped crossing X X

Wi18.5 Wisbech Cromwell Road 18.5  Review crossing provision Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

Due to the length of road this scheme covers this 
will be a longer term project.

Ped crossing X X

Wi1.5 Wisbech Weasenham Lane 1.5 Provide ped islands on wide 
junctions. Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term

This is a larger project expected to take longer to 
deliver, however scoping should be completed 
earlier

Ped island X X X

Wi10.3 Wisbech
Leverington Road (Peckover 
School) / Chapel Road path 
link

10.3  Improve island refuge on junction 
with Harecroft Road Phase 2 Phase 3 Long Term

Scoping work is needed to understand the extent of 
intervention needed here.

Ped island X X

Wi11.5 Wisbech
Horsefair / Freedom Bridge / 
Nene Parade / Osborne Road 
/ Mount Pleasant Road

11.5  Explore option for crossing refuge 
on Horsefair arm of Freedom Bridge 
roundabout

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

Ideally this would be delivered earlier, however due 
to the scale of works expected this will take longer.

Ped island X X X

Wi11.6 Wisbech
Horsefair / Freedom Bridge / 
Nene Parade / Osborne Road 
/ Mount Pleasant Road

11.6  Explore improvements to ped 
refuge on Nene Quay arm of Freedom 
Bridge roundabout

Phase 2 Phase 2 Long Term

As above - however this may be able to be brought 
forward depending on progress of Active Travel 
Tranche 2 project.

Ped island X X X

Wi18.6 Wisbech Cromwell Road
18.6  Explore options to provide of 
refuge island at Salters Way or to aid 
crossing.

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium/Lon
g Term

Dependant on the extent of works this would ideally 
be a Medium Term project but due to location work 
here may take longer.

Ped island X X

Wi4.3 Wisbech
NCN63 Little Church Street / 
Pasimitymas / Whitby Street / 
Town Park

4.3  Renew/update road markings 
between Churchill Road and Wisbech 
Town Park

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term
This should be relatively straight forward to 
complete.

Road markings X

Wi1.2 Wisbech Weasenham Lane 1.2 Review & improve shared path 
signage Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term Signage package Signage X X X

Wi4.1 Wisbech
NCN63 Little Church Street / 
Pasimitymas / Whitby Street / 
Town Park

4.1  Explore cycling contraflow (including 
signage provision) on Little Church 
Street

Phase 2 Phase 2 Medium 
Term 

This is not a priority scheme due to low footfall. It 
may require only a small amount of work but this is 
at present unknown.

Signage X

Wi14.2 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.2  Explore options to sign an 
alternative cycle route along streets 
parallel to Churchill Road (Wisbech Park, 
William Road/Park Street, Norwich Road 
to Elizabeth Terrace)

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term

Signage package Signage X X X X

Wi14.7 Wisbech Churchill Road / Ramnoth 
Road (Ramnoth Primary)

14.7  Review & improve school signage 
where necessary Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term Signage package Signage X X X X

Wi18.4 Wisbech Cromwell Road 18.4  Improve shared use path signage Phase 1 Phase 1 Short Term Signage package Signage X X

Appendix 6 - Wisbech Recommendations

P
age 82



Wi5.5 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.5  Assess link path to Lynn Road for 
surface improvement Phase 1 Phase 1 Short/Mediu

m Term

Assessment can be completed quickly, however the 
delivery of this project will depend whether 
resurfacing or surfacing upgrades are needed.

Surface 
Improvements

X X X

Wi1.1 Wisbech Weasenham Lane 1.1 Explore options for widening shared 
use path using existing verges. Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term 

This site has lots of potential for widening. This will 
be a larger scheme however due to the length of 
path in question.

Widen existing 
path

X X X

Wi5.2 Wisbech

NCN63 Tavistock Road / 
Coleville Road (Clarkson 
Infant) / Trafford Road (path 
link to Lynn Road)

5.2  Explore potential for path widening Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term 

This will require some road space - need to 
understand extent and whether this is supported.

Widen existing 
path

X X X

Wi6.2 Wisbech
NCN63 Kooremann Avenue 
(path link) / Prins Avenue / 
Waterlees Road

6.2  Explore potential to widen the path 
north east of Kooremann Avenue to 
create shared use path connecting to 
Waterlees Road and improve amenity. 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 
Term 

Scoping is needed to understand the extent of work 
needed to achieve this.

Widen existing 
path

X

Wi16.1 Wisbech Money Bank / Quaker Lane / M   16.1  Explore options for path widening 
on Money Bank Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term 
Due to the length of road this would be a longer 
term project

Widen existing 
path

X

Wi17.1 Wisbech Lynn Road

17.1  Provide shared use path along 
south side of Lynn Road using existing 
space and grass verges between Lerowe 
Road & Freedom Bridge roundabout - 
investigate options for provision around 
'pinch point' at Mount Pleasant traffic 
lights.

Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium/Lon
g Term

Dependant on the extent of works this would ideally 
be a Medium Term project but due to the length of 
road this may take longer.

Widen existing 
path

X X

Wi18.1 Wisbech Cromwell Road 18.1  Widen shared use path using 
existing verges Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term 
Due to the length of road this scheme covers this 
will be a longer term project.

Widen existing 
path

X X

Appendix 6 - Wisbech Recommendations

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



28 

6.4 March Recommendations 

The March Area Transport Study (MATS) walking and cycling report identified six key route 
corridors across March providing main links to employment areas and education. These 
routes have been highlighted on the map on the right. Audits of existing walking and cycling 
provision along each route were undertaken between October and December 2019 as part 
of this study to identify where improvements can be made to facilitate pedestrian and 
cyclist movement and promote sustainable travel options. This work was led by 
Cambridgeshire County Council and the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Combined 
Authority with support from Fenland District Council and delivered by Capita. 

The recommendations from the MATS walking and cycling work have been developed into a 
programme of schemes which are included in Appendix 4 – March Schemes. This sets out 
the detail of each scheme and the delivery expectation for each recommendation. As 
explained earlier in Section 5.2 of this document scheme delivery phases include Scoping 
and Feasibility, Design Work, and Construction.  

The delivery of the MATS schemes identified for March is being progressed by 
Cambridgeshire County Council with funding from the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough 
Combined Authority. Progress on this work will be monitored and supported as part of this 
strategy. 

The MATS includes highway schemes to improve traffic congestion across March. One of 
these schemes, the Northern Industrial Link Road, incorporates provision of a segregated 
cycle way section forming part of the NCN63. This is an important inclusion to the highway 
schemes and strongly supported by this strategy. 

In addition to the MATS schemes this strategy includes 
proposals to improve the off-road link along Lambs Drove to 
Wimblington. This is a member prioritised scheme to create 
a multi-modal route suitable for all users in all weathers. 
This will require suitable surface provision for bicycles or e-
bikes whilst retaining sufficient portions of softer surfacing 
needed for equestrian use. 

The full details of the March Area Transport Study including the Walking and Cycling Audit Reports can be viewed online at March Transport 
Study - Cambridgeshire County Council  

UPDATED AGENDA ITEM 5 - PAGE 49 of agenda pack (page 28 on report)   

updated information highlighted in yellow

P
age 85

https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/march-transport-study
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/transport-funding-bids-and-studies/march-transport-study
1302
Underline



M25 March Burrowmoor Road (Safer 
Routes to School)

Investigate options for installing a pedestrian crossing 
facility on Burrowmoor Road within proximity to the 
school. Recommend installation of raised table outside 
No. 19. This will provide traffic calming and will facilitate 
safer ped crossing. This facility can then be used as 
crossing location used by crossing attendant. 

Phase 1 Phase 1 Medium 
Term

High priority since connected to school travel safety. 
Liaised with school’s crossing attendant (during PM pick up on 11th Nov) who 
confirmed need for traffic calming to improve safety of crossing facilities as 
children/parent face daily safety issues crossing Burrowmoor Rd outside school 
due to parents illegal parking, which is daily issue, and worse during PM pick 
up. Recommend raised table adjacent to no/and associated markings to slow 
traffic outside school, which can be used by crossing attendant. 

Ped Crossing & 
Traffic Calming

X X

M26 March Burrowmoor Road (Safer 
Routes to School)

Relining of no parking restrictions road markings outside 
school. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 

Term 
High priority since connected to school travel. Road Markings X X X

M27 March Town wide ped/cycle  
wayfinding

Identify wayfinding signage improvements, providing 
distance to key destinations, including March Railway 
Station, the town centre, Neale-Wade Academy and 
other key destinations.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 
Term 

Wayfinding to be considered as part of March wide signage strategy based on 
key decision points.

Wayfinding X X X X X

M28 March NCN 63 route  signage Improve NCN 63 routing signage/markings which are 
currently inconsistent and fragmented through March. 
Include shared use markings in cut through opposite 
Wisbech Road Post Office. This section of NCN route 
should be formalised.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 
Term 

NCN 63 route signage/markings are identified separately to ped/cycle 
wayfinding improvements as requires consultation with Sustrans. 

NCN Signage X X

M29 March Lambs Drove Explore surface and lighting improvements to create an 
all weather all users route linking to Wimblington Phase 1 Phase 2 Medium 

Term
Shared Use Path X

M30 March High Street Re-paint Zebra Crossing markings outside St Peter 
Church. Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 

Term 
The markings for this crossing have significantly faded. This has been passed 
to CCC Highways.

Road Markings X X X X

M31 March Elwyn Road Review and adjust dropped kerb and tactile paving on 
crossing to Market Place.

Phase 1 Phase 1 Short 
Term 

The existing dropped kerb is very steep. This creates a risk of wheelchair of 
moblity aid users being tipped over. The kerb line should be lifted and realigned 
to reduce this issue. (this has been passed to the MATS Walking & Cycling 
project team for inclusion in the existing works package_

Drop Kerb X X X X

Updated Agenda Item 5 - Appendix 4 - March Recommendations  (page 73 of 
agenda pack) - additional information highlighted in yellow

P
age 86

1302_1
Underline



Agenda Item 
No: 6  

Committee: Cabinet 

Date:  5th September 2022 

Report Title: Funding, Bid and Project Management 

 
Cover sheet: 
1 Purpose / Summary 
1.1 To update Cabinet on the revised processes to successfully bid for and manage 

future and existing projects. 
 
2 Key Issues 
2.1 The current economic climate is having a significant impact on both cost and 

supply of resources to successfully deliver projects to both time and budget. 
2.2 Government funding opportunities appear at short notice with challenging 

timelines and conditions for successful bid submissions. 
2.3 Certain types of funding are asking for CFO sign off to state that any shortfalls 

will be “picked up” by the Council. i.e. Levelling up funding. 
2.4 External funding can be finite and so far as is practicable, every effort will be 

made to ensure that all costs and eventualities are accounted for prior to 
submitting the bid but recognising that there may be some variance following 
the completion of any related tender exercise.   

2.5 Mitigations including contingencies and project descoping will need to be 
factored into proposals whilst balancing reality against the need to secure the 
funding. 

2.6 Decision making may need to include pulling out of funding bids at an early 
stage, descoping of live projects or at worst ceasing progress. 

 
3 Recommendations 
3.1 Cabinet to note the changes in agreed processes. 
 
Wards Affected All 

Forward Plan 
Reference 

[Insert Reference No. From Forward Plan. (It is a legal 
requirement to include key executive decisions on the 
forward plan for 28 days before the decision requested in 
this report is taken). 

Portfolio Holder(s) All Portfolio Holders 
 

Page 87

Agenda Item 6



Report Originator(s) Peter Catchpole, Corporate Director and CFO 
Paul Medd, Chief Executive 
Amy Brown, Head of Governance and Legal 

Contact Officer(s) Peter Catchpole, Corporate Director and CFO 
Paul Medd, Chief Executive 
Amy Brown, Head of Governance and Legal 

Background Papers None 

 
Report: 
 
1 BACKGROUND AND INTENDED OUTCOMES 
 
1.1 The current economic climate is having a significant impact on both cost and 

supply of resources to successfully deliver projects to both time and budget. 
Additionally, Government funding opportunities appear at short notice with 
challenging timelines and conditions for successful bid submissions. In some 
cases these conditions are asking for CFO sign off to state that any shortfalls 
will be “picked up” by the Council. i.e. Levelling up funding. 

1.2 These factors are making it increasingly difficult when submitting bids for 
funding and this coupled with the finite nature of the funding makes it vital that 
the submission is as “watertight” as possible. It is therefore of great importance 
that every endeavour is made to provide assurance at bid stage to ensure that 
all costs and eventualities are accounted for. However, this is difficult as 
deadlines and process mean that estimates have to be provided before any 
actual costs can be ascertained through tendering. 

1.3 It is therefore crucial that mitigations including contingencies and project 
descoping are factored into these proposals whilst balancing reality against the 
need to secure the funding within the timescales provided. 

1.4 Perhaps even more crucially, decision making will need to range from choosing 
not to bid for certain funding opportunities to both descoping or stopping 
projects completely if the situation becomes financially untenable. 

 
2 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 In light of the above, it is deemed necessary to further strengthen our own 

internal processes to reflect the extra robustness needed to manage both 
funding bids and live projects in the current environment. 

 
3 CONSULTATION 
 
 N/A 
 
 
 

Page 88



4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 There are many principles and guidelines for managing projects but it is felt that 

this is an enhancement to existing processes rather than a major overhaul. It is 
intended that the revised process reflects continuous improvement and 
evolution of existing practises. 

 
5 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Legal Implications 
 
5.1.1 The proposed strengthening of existing arrangements in relation to the process 
 for applying for an accepting grant funding accord with the Council’s 
 commitment to consistent and transparent decision making. 
 
5.1.2 Paragraph 10 of Table 5 of Part 3 of the Constitution makes the following 

delegations in relation to the allocation of external funding awarded to the 
Council and entry in to the associated financial and legal agreements 
associated with that: 

 
- Up to £100,000 – Corporate Directors in consultation with the relevant 

Portfolio Holder and Leader of the Council; 
- Between £100,001 and £500,000 – Cabinet Member and Leader of the 

Council; 
- Over £500,001 – Cabinet. 

 
5.1.3 The existing constitutional provisions and proposed updates therefore 
 ensure that there are adequate opportunities for member and officer input and 
 engagement throughout the process and that the overall impact of bidding 
 for/accepting the funding can be properly assessed in line with existing 
 budgetary/resourcing provisions. 
 
5.2 Financial Implications 
 
5.2.1 The financial implications will be different for each bid submission and project 

managed and these revisions seek to include finance support at all stages of 
the process. The financial risk will obviously vary according to the amounts 
involved and, although a monetary limit is not being suggested, there is 
undoubtedly a bigger risk on higher value projects that require a Council 
contribution. 

 
5.3 Equality Implications 
 
 N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 89



6 SCHEDULES 
  
 1 Checklist 
 2 Bid Management Process 
 3 Project Management Process 
 
   

Page 90



SCHEDULE 1 
Checklist 
 
Simplistic flow charts are attached at schedules 1 and 2 and a checklist is to be 
implemented which will cover the following:- 

The aims and scope of the project, the business case and budget, the team including 
stakeholders and their responsibilities and partners if necessary. To achieve this the 
following questions must be addressed:- 

• How and when will this be delivered, internally (is there adequate resource) or 
externally? 

• Define project governance arrangements i.e. member steering group members, 
project lead officer, officer project team members (including any relevant 
external partner reps). 

• Who will lead on the bid and then subsequently the project itself? 
• Is capacity in line with the expected delivery timescales? 
• What are the delivery timescales? 
• What is the projected total cost of delivering the project from inception to 

completion? And is the project viable? 
• Have all costs including contingencies, officer and consultant time been 

factored into the bid? 
• Has the proper governance route been followed and a full audit trail in place 

according to the type of bid? i.e. Matched funding, partner contributions, funding 
agreements, FDC exposure? 

• Have all financial and legal implications been assessed including subsidy 
control? 

• Is there scope for project de-specification as a financial risk mitigation? 
• Are the appropriate Portfolio Holders and Cabinet where required adequately 

sighted and bought into the bid and subsequent project? 
• Are quality management and monitoring processes in place including due 

diligence and regular monitoring of partners? 
• Has an appropriate risk assessment been undertaken for the project? 
• Is a risk register in place to identify, monitor and log issues? 

 

Page 91



SCHEDULE 2 

Bid management process map 

 
 

Funding Opportunity 
 identified by service area 

 
 
 

Bid manager identified and team formed 
to include finance, legal and  
procurement plus relevant  

technical support 
 
 
  
 
 

Bid prepared using 
checklist and presented 

To CMT for pre  
approval  

 
 
 

Discuss with the Leader and/or  
relevant portfolio holder 

 
 
 

                                                                             Bid finalised for 
 Submission 

 
 
        Final sign off by project lead 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid submitted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid approved by the Leader 
and/or relevant portfolio holder 

 

Page 92



SCHEDULE 3 

Project  management process map 

 
 

Project 
Initiated 

 
 
 

Project manager identified  
and project team formed 

to include finance and procurement  
plus relevant technical support 

 
 
  
 
 

Project Initiation Document (PID) 
 Including Full budget produced 

and presented 
To CMT for pre  

approval  
 
 
 

Discuss with relevant Portfolio Holder 
 
 
 
 

                                                                            Project Plan finalised for 
      commencement 

 
 
        Final sign off by CMT Sponsor 
 
 
 
 

Project kick off meeting  
 

 
 

 
Tendering and procurement phases 

Begin if required 
 
 
 
 

                                                                            Project Plan and budget 
 finalised for commencement 

 
 
        Monthly update reports to  
        Project steering group and key 

 members 
 
 
 

Project Completes 
 
 

 
 

Project wash up meeting and lessons learnt 
 
 
 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 
No: 8  

Meeting: Cabinet 

Date:  3rd October 2022 

Report Title: Constitutional Amendments Update 

 
Cover sheet: 
 
1 Purpose / Summary 
1.1 Paragraph 2.1(a) of Article 4 of the Constitution provides that Full Council will 

be responsible for approving and reviewing the Council’s Constitution to ensure 
the continuous improvement of local democracy.  Paragraph 3.1 of Article 15 
of the further specifies that changes to the Constitution will only be approved 
by the Council after consideration of the proposals by Cabinet.   

1.2 The purpose of this Report is to seek Cabinet’s agreement to a proposed 
amendment to the Standing Orders for recommendation to Full Council for 
approval. 

 
2 Key Issues 
2.1 In or to ensure the convenient and effective discharge of Council functions, the 

Acting Monitoring Officer seeks Cabinet’s approval of an amendment to 
Standing Orders so that motions on notice must be submitted by no later than 
12 noon 5 clear working days prior to the meeting to which they relate as 
opposed to by 5 p.m. as is currently required.  Subject to that being agreed, it 
is a requirement of the Constitution that Cabinet then recommend that change 
to Full Council for approval. 

 
3 Recommendations 
3.1 Cabinet are requested to agree a proposed amendment to paragraph 10.1 of 

the Standing Orders so that motions on notice are required to be submitted by 
12 noon as opposed to 5 p.m. and, if agreed, to recommend that change to Full 
Council for approval. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



Wards Affected N/A 

Forward Plan 
Reference 

N/A 

Portfolio Holder(s) Councillor Boden, Leader of the Council 
 

Report Originator(s) Amy Brown, Acting Monitoring Officer 
 
Peter Catchpole, Corporate Director with responsibility for 
Governance 

Contact Officer(s) Amy Brown, Acting Monitoring Officer 
 
Elaine Cooper, Team Leader – Elections, Land Charges 
and Member Services 
 

Background Papers Report to Full Council of 6th August 2020: 
 
Report and Appendix A.pdf (fenland.gov.uk) 

 
Report: 
 
1 BACKGROUND AND INTENDED OUTCOMES 
 
1.1 The purpose of this Report is to request that Cabinet agree the Monitoring 

Officer’s proposed amendment to paragraph 10.1 of the Standing Orders and, 
if agreed that the change is recommended by Cabinet to Full Council for 
approval. 

 
2 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Paragraph 10.1 of Fenland District Council’s Procedure Rules (Standing 

Orders) provided that notice of any motion (other than those which can be 
moved without notice under Rule 11) must be delivered in writing or by 
electronic mail to the Chief Executive by not later than 5 p.m. at least 5 clear 
working days before the date of the relevant meeting (not counting the day of 
delivery or the day of the meeting).  Similarly, notice of the meeting must be 
given to members of the public and the summons issued to all Councillors along 
with the publication of the Agenda and associated reports again at least 5 clear 
working days before the date of the relevant meeting.  Whilst the Council’s 
Procedure Rules and Access to Information Procedure Rules do not specify a 
time by which this must take place, in the interests of expedience every effort 
is made to ensure that these tasks are completed within ordinary business 
hours.  In order therefore to ensure the convenient and effective discharge of 
the Council’s functions, it is recommended that the deadline for receipt of 
motions is changed from 5 p.m. to 12 noon in order to enable Member Services 
colleagues adequate time to prepare and publish the final version of the Agenda 
before close of business. 

Page 96

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/localgov/documents/s6400/Report%20and%20Appendix%20A.pdf


 
3 CONSULTATION 
 
 There are no specific consultation requirements however, the purpose of this 

Report is to seek Cabinet’s endorsement of the proposed amendment prior to 
recommendation to Full Council for approval.  Should Cabinet agree to make 
that recommendation, all members will participate in the ultimate decision as to 
whether or not to make the change which, as it relates to motions on notice, 
impacts only on councillors and not members of the public who will still be 
notified of the existence of the motion in the same way. 

 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 The recommendation requests that Cabinet agree the time for receipt of 

motions is changed from 5 p.m. to 12 noon and if agreed, recommends this to 
Full Council for approval.  If Cabinet does not support the proposed 
amendment, paragraph 10.1 of the Standing Orders will remain unchanged. 

 
5 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Legal Implications 
 
5.1.1 There are no specific legal implications associated with the recommendations 
 other than as already set out in this Report. 
 
5.2 Financial Implications 
 
5.2.1 There are none. 
 
5.3 Equality Implications 
 
5.3.1 There are none.  

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 6 MONTH CABINET FORWARD PLAN –  
Updated 16 September 2022 
 
(For any queries, please refer to the published forward plan) 
 
CABINET 

CABINET 
DATE 

ITEMS LEAD 
PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER 
24 Oct 
2022 

1. Investment Board Update 
 
 
2. Land Transfer – Wisbech 
 
 
3. Land Transfer – Chatteris 
 

 
4. 24 High Street, Wisbech – Update (TBC) 
 
 
5. 11-12 High Street, Wisbech – Update (TBC) 
 
 
6. Inward investment from Central Government 

to support Gypsy & Traveller Site 
improvements (TBC) 

7. Cabinet Draft Forward Plan 
8. Development of Phase 4 of South Fens 

Enterprise Park (confidential) 

Cllr Boden / 
Cllr Tierney / 
Cllr Benney 
Cllr Boden / 
Cllr Benney / 
Cllr Tierney 
Cllr Boden / 
Cllr Benney / 
Cllr Tierney 

Cllr Seaton /  
Cllr Hoy / 

Cllr Tierney 
Cllr Seaton /  

Cllr Hoy / 
Cllr Tierney 

Cllr Hoy 
 
 

Cllr Boden 
Cllr Benney 

14 Nov 
2022 
 

1. 24 High Street, Wisbech - Update (TBC) 
 
 
2. Cabinet Draft Forward Plan 

Cllr Seaton /  
Cllr Hoy / 

Cllr Tierney 
Cllr Boden 

12 Dec 
2022 

1. Draft Business Plan 2023/24 
2. Draft Budget & Mid Term Financial Strategy 

2023/24 
3. Treasury Management Strategy Statement & 

Annual Investment Strategy Mid-Year Review 
2022/23 

4. RECAP Partnership Waste Strategy Review 
 
 
5. 24 High Street, Wisbech - Update (TBC) 
 
 

Cllr Boden 
Cllr Boden 

 
Cllr Boden 

 
 

Cllr Tierney / 
Cllr Murphy 
Cllr Boden 

Cllr Seaton /  
Cllr Hoy / 

Cllr Tierney 

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



CABINET 
DATE 

ITEMS LEAD 
PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER 
6. Whittlesey Neighbourhood Planning 

Referendum 
7. Cabinet Draft Forward Plan  

Cllr Laws 
 

Cllr Boden 
30 Jan 
2023 

1. Fees and Charges 
2. 24 High Street, Wisbech - Update (TBC) 
 
 
3. Cabinet Draft Forward Plan 

Cllr Boden 
Cllr Seaton /  

Cllr Hoy / 
Cllr Tierney 
Cllr Boden 

20 Feb 
2023 

1. Business Plan 2023/24 
2. Budget & Mid Term Financial Strategy 2023/24 
3. Investment Board Update 

 
 

4. 24 High Street, Wisbech - Update (TBC) 
 
 
5. Cabinet Draft Forward Plan 

Cllr Boden 
Cllr Boden 

Cllr Boden / 
Cllr Benney / 
Cllr Tierney 

Cllr Seaton /  
Cllr Hoy / 

Cllr Tierney 
Cllr Boden 

16 Mar 
2023 

1. Award of Gas Supply Contract 
2. 24 High Street, Wisbech - Update (TBC) 
 
 
3. Cabinet Draft Forward Plan 

Cllr Benney 
Cllr Seaton /  

Cllr Hoy / 
Cllr Tierney 
Cllr Boden 

 

TBC = To be confirmed 
 

Page 100



Document is Restricted

Page 101

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Previous Minutes
	5 Fenland Walking, Cycling & Mobility Aid Strategy
	Cabinet Paper Oct 2022 - Walking Cycling and Mobility Aid Strategy Rpt V4 16.09.2022
	Cover sheet:
	1 Purpose / Summary
	2 Key Issues
	3 Recommendations

	Report:
	2.2 Public Consultation and Walking, Cycling and Mobility Strategy version 2
	2.3 Walking and cycling schemes updates and progress
	2.4      Next Steps and timetable


	FENLAND CYCLING WALKING  MOBILITY IMPROVEMENT STRATEGY- version 2. Final for Cabinet
	1.1 Fenland Context
	1.2 The need for a Local Strategy
	1.3 Related Plans & Strategies
	1.4 Strategy consideration of different modes of travel
	Preferred improvements for Fenland
	4.1 Aim
	4.2 Objectives
	4.3 Strategy Approach
	Access to key locations
	Developing a Fenland-wide walking and cycling network
	Encouraging travel choice and reducing other travel barriers
	5.1 Core Policies
	5.2 Funding and Scheme Delivery
	5.3 Delivering the Strategy and Measuring Progress.
	5.4 Strategy Review
	The projects and network schemes required to deliver this strategy have been set out in the following chapters.
	6.2 Physical Interventions
	6.3 Recommendations for Chatteris

	Appendix 1 - Related Strategies
	Appendix 2 - Action Plan
	Appendix 3 - Chatteris Recommendations
	Chatteris

	Appendix 4 - March Recommendations
	March

	Appendix 5 - Whittlesey Recommendations
	Whittlesey

	Appendix 6 - Wisbech Recommendations
	Wisbech

	Supplementary information for Agenda Item 5 - Fenland Walking Cycling and Mobility Aid Strategy
	FENLAND CYCLING WALKING  MOBILITY IMPROVEMENT STRATEGY- version 2. UPDATED for Cabinet
	Appendix 4 - March Recommendations UPDATED


	6 Bidding for External Funding & Project Management
	Cabinet Report Project management Sept 2022 Final
	Cover sheet:
	1 Purpose / Summary
	2 Key Issues
	3 Recommendations

	Report:

	Cabinet Report Bid management Sept 2022 - Schedule 2 Draft
	Cabinet report Project Management Sept 2022 Draft - Schedule 3

	8 Constitutional Amendments
	Cover sheet:
	1 Purpose / Summary
	2 Key Issues
	3 Recommendations

	Report:

	9 Draft 6 Month Cabinet Forward Plan
	11 Previous Minutes (confidential)



